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ChaIrMan’S StateMent

FInanCIal perForManCe
For the year under review, the Group revenue increased to rM�50.7 
million from rM85.9 million achieved in the previous year, while Group 
profit before tax rose to rM2�.7 million as compared to rM�2.9 million 
recorded in the previous year.

In tandem with our sterling financial performance, the earnings per 
share for the year under review increased by more than 50% to reach 
20.40 sen.

the achievement of strong growth in revenue and profit in the current 
year was the more meaningful given the uncertainties in the global 
economy where the prices of raw materials and commodities, including 
that of palm oil, crude oil and rice, hit all time highs amidst a declining uS 
Dollar.  Despite these challenges, it is gratifying to report that the Group 
managed to increase its export sales by over �52% to rM95.� million 
with australia, Vietnam and russia being our top export destinations.  In 
fact, this export achievement signaled a turning point – for the first time 
in our corporate history, the volume of our export sales finally exceeded 
that of our local sales – a clear testimony that our motto ”poised for 
accelerated Global Growth” is paying dividend.

dear Valued Shareholders

on behalf of the Board of Directors of Imaspro Corporation Berhad (“ICB”), it is my great 
pleasure to present the annual report and audited Financial Statements of the Group 
and Company for a very successful financial year ended 30 June, 2008.

In my previous Chairman’s statement, I reported that towards the end of 
FY2007, we faced a disruption of supply of glyphosate which affected our 
production and subsequently some delays in fulfilling certain customer 
orders.  this temporary setback was more than reversed within the first 
half of FY2008 where the growth momentum continued strongly into 
the second half of the financial year (the 3rd and 4th quarters being 
traditionally the stronger quarters), despite a more than �00% increase 
in the price of glyphosate between �st and 4th Quarter of FY 2008. this 
strong profit performance of the current financial year was aided in part 
by selling price adjustments to mitigate the erosion of profit margin 
from upward movement of raw material input costs.  

DIVIDenDS
the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a single tier dividend 
of 3.5 sen per share in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2008, 
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual 
General Meeting.

operatIonS reVIew
the principal activity of ICB is investment holding with wholly owned 
subsidiaries involved in the manufacturing of pesticides and plants 

Imaspro’s australian distributor sharing crop protection information 
with wheat grower at rockhampton wheat farm, Queensland.

MD C.h. tong attending the proceedings of the 2nd China International 
Forum on procurement and Service of Crop protection products organized 
by the China Crop protection Industry association held in nanjing, China.
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the key underlying drivers pushing up the demand for agriculture 
commodities such as palm oil, soy beans, coffee and rice, i.e. demand 
from the growing population of major economies like China and India 
will likely remain for a long time.  another new source of demand 
for agriculture commodities is its use as input raw materials for the 
production of bio-fuel.  as long as the price of crude oil stays above 
the magical uSD�00 per barrel, the switch to developing and using 
bio-fuels as an alternative energy source becomes increasingly more 
viable.  as the increase in agricultural hectarage cannot be immediately 
translated into an increase in supply of agricultural commodities, pockets 
of price shocks as experienced in early 2008 can therefore be expected 
to recur unless appropriate actions are taken well in advance to increase 
investment in agriculture.  as a result of the current world food crisis, 
the world Bank has recently pledged to make investment in agriculture 
its top priority once again.  Sadly, over the last 27 years, the percentage 
of world Bank’s loans used for investments in agriculture in developing 
countries has dropped from 35% in �980 to a mere ��% in 2007, and 
this reversal policy by world Bank is significant as it provides a much 
needed boost to agriculture activities worldwide.

Closer back home, in response to global food crisis, the government of 
Malaysia announced a rM4 billion fund to counter food shortages and 
stabilize food prices.  the allocation would include developing new 
paddy farming areas in states like pahang, Sabah and Sarawak and 
increasing agriculture infrastructure, including more extensive irrigation 
system and more ready access to agrochemicals and nutrient fertilizer 
inputs. this rM4 billion allocation will certainly augment our country’s 
aspiration to turn agriculture into the third engine of growth and to 
make the country self-sufficient in food by 20�0.  In the plantation 
sector, statistics on production and consumption suggest the world 
will increasingly depend on palm oil in view of its gradual acceptance 
globally as a healthier alternative to other vegetable oils.  this demand 
would significantly increase the production of crude palm oil in the 
future and expansion oil palm areas.

From the above, we foresee continuous favourable growth prospects 
for our products in the plantation and crops sectors, both locally and in 
overseas markets, in the coming year.  In tandem with our motto “poised 

micronutrients, the distribution and agency of pesticides and other 
agrochemicals as well as trading of pesticides and other agrochemicals.  
our group products are widely used in the agricultural sectors as well 
as in the urban pest control.

our bio-palm insecticide envo-Cyper, commercialized in Malaysia on 
� July 2007, is currently being used in oil palm plantations and other 
farming areas.  we are encouraged by the early acceptance of the product 
in the Malaysian market.  efforts are being made to market it overseas 
upon obtaining registration approval in the respective countries.  

to support more eco-friendly and sustainable agriculture practice, our 
r&D team is working to expand our range of bio-palm insecticides.  the 
base technology accumulated when developing envo-Cyper will be 
adapted and applied to develop new bio-palm insecticide formulations 
without having to use petroleum-based inert ingredients.

During the current financial year, Imaspro launched two (2) additional 
products in australia, made maiden export of our preminator cockroach 
gel bait (developed in-house and launched in Malaysia in april 2007) 
to lebanon and obtained product registration of glyphosate in China.  
Initial shipment of glyphosate to Cuba commenced in the 2nd Quarter 
of FY2008, while sales to China will commence upon finalization of 
distributorship agreement.  

while we continued to build on our solid foundation for accelerated 
global growth during the financial year under review, we also paid close 
attention to the monitoring and control of our operational costs.  the 
success of the current year was the direct result of being able to increase 
sales while keeping costs in check.

outlook anD proSpeCtS
Imaspro is in the agrochemical business and the growth and prospects 
of the agriculture industry, both locally and globally, have a significant 
impact on Imaspro’s performance.

agriculture commodity prices are expected to moderate over the 
coming year having hit record levels in early 2008.  however, one of 

Conducting commercial papaya field trial and experiment to evaluate the 
effectiveness and phyto-toxicity effects of a range of our insecticides as 
part of our r&D program.

providing food assistance / rice subsidy to factory personnel to help them 
cope with the impact of increase in the price of food and general cost of 
living.
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for accelerated Global Growth”, we will continue to explore and expand the reach of our overseas 
markets, focusing on countries which are less susceptible to a slowdown in uS economy.  at the 
same time, we will devote additional resources to improve the efficiency of our production and 
management processes and to enhance our market research and product innovation capabilities 
via both in-house training sessions and also external courses for our staff.

Globally, the sharp hike in price of crude oil to record highs and the recent pull-back to hover 
around uSD65 per barrel have led to a chain of events resulting in a greatly uncertain world 
economy.  and our Malaysian economy, being so much a part of the global economy, is bound 
to feel the impact. as such, uncertainties are likely to prevail both locally and globally, and I 
am therefore cautious, more so when at the time of writing the price of glyphosate has fallen 
drastically from its peak in 4th Quarter of FY2008.  however, given the strong foundation of growth 
that we have developed and coupled with the unwavering commitment of the management 
and staff and the continued support of our business partners, I remain confident that we can 
weather the anticipated very challenging market environment in the coming financial year, and 
continue to perform satisfactorily.

Corporate SoCIal reSponSIBIlItY
the Group is committed to Corporate Social responsibility (“CSr”) by integrating it into the 
daily business operations.  key CSr initiatives undertaken by the Group during the financial 
year included the following:-

• overseas customers and suppliers - Donations to funds set up to alleviate hardship of victims 
of nargis Cyclone in Myanmar (customer) and earthquake disaster in China (supplier); and

• employee - provision of food assistance in the form of increased allowances and rice subsidy 
to help our factory personnel cope with the impact of increase in the price of fuel and rice 
and general cost of living.  training for all levels of non-factory employees was also intensified 
during the current financial year.

these activities do not only improve the skills and competency of personnel, they also create an 
awareness that the Group cares for their well-being. 

the Group continues to place great importance on the need to protect our environment.  the 
Group’s business responsibility, while geared towards increasing profitability, is also to maintain its 
good manufacturing practices and to adhere to national environmental policies at all times.  

aCknowleDGeMent anD appreCIatIon
on behalf of the Board, I would like to record our thanks and gratitude to the Management and 
Staff for their continuous efforts towards ensuring the growth and expansion of the Group’s 
operations.  to our shareholders, customers, business associates, bankers, regulators and advisors, 
we thank you once again and we look forward to your continued support.

to my fellow colleagues on the Board, I would like to express my appreciation and gratitude for 
their counsel, support and invaluable contributions to the Group throughout the year.

Mohd Shafek Bin Isa
ChaIrMan

penang - personnel from manufacturing plants

JogJakarta - personnel from techno-commercial 
department

ho Chi Minh - senior executives from 
manufacturing plants

taiwan - personnel from corporate head office

Offsite team 
building retreats 
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DIreCtorate & Corporate InForMatIon

BoarD oF DIreCtorS 
MohD ShaFek BIn ISa 
(non-executive Chairman)

tonG ChIn hen 
(Managing Director)

tonG ah wah @ tonG Chun hwI 
(executive Director)

Dr. leonG wan leonG 
(Independent non-executive Director)

taI keat ChaI 
(Independent non-executive Director)

 

SeCretarIeS 
enG Soo Funn (MaCS 00044)

laM lee San (MaICSa 7048�04)

reGIStereD oFFICe 
wisma Goshen, 2nd Floor
60 & 62 Jalan SS22/2�
Damansara Jaya
47400 petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul ehsan

tel no.: + (603) 7728 8485
Fax no.: + (603) 7728 8852

heaD/ManaGeMent oFFICe 
37, Jalan 5, kawasan �6, taman Intan
4�300 klang
Selangor Darul ehsan

tel no.: + (603) 3343 �633
Fax no.: + (603) 3343 �868
e-mail : imaspro@imaspro.com
website : http://www.imaspro.com

reGIStrar 
pFa registration Services Sdn. Bhd.
level �7, the Gardens north tower
Mid Valley City
lingkaran Syed putra
59200 kuala lumpur

tel no.: + (603) 2264 3883

auDItorS 
roger Yue, tan & associates
Chartered accountants

auDIt CoMMIttee 
taI keat ChaI 
(appointed as Chairman on 4 February 2008)

Dr. leonG wan leonG 
(formerly Chairman, redesignated as      
   Member on 4 February 2008)

MohD ShaFek BIn ISa 
(appointed on �� october 2007)

tonG ChIn hen 
(resigned on �� october 2007)
 

reMuneratIon CoMMIttee
Dr. leonG wan leonG 
(appointed as Chairman on 27 May 2008)

taI keat ChaI 
(formerly Chairman, redesignated as Member  
   on 27 May 2008) 

MohD ShaFek BIn ISa
 

noMInatIon CoMMIttee
Dr. leonG wan leonG
(appointed as Chairman on 28 august 2008)

MohD ShaFek BIn ISa 
(formerly Chairman, redesignated as Member  
   on 28 august 2008) 

taI keat ChaI

 

Group prInCIpal BankerS
Malayan Banking Berhad
petaling Jaya Business Centre
�st & 2nd Floor, wisma IJM annexe
Jalan Yong Shook lin
46050 petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul ehsan

hSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad 
�7-23, Jalan Sultan 
46200 petaling Jaya 
Selangor Darul ehsan

 

SolICItorS
teh & lee
unit 23-3, 3rd Floor
the Boulevard
Mid Valley City
lingkaran Syed putra
59200 kuala lumpur
 

StoCk exChanGe lIStInG
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(Second Board)
Stock name : Imaspro
Stock Code : 7222
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proFIle oF DIreCtorS

MOhd ShAfek BIn ISA
non-executive Chairman

encik Mohd Shafek Bin Isa, a Malaysian, and aged 5�, is the non-executive Chairman.  he was appointed to the Board 
and elected Chairman since �5 november 2005.  he serves as the Chairman of the nomination Committee. on 28 
august 2008, he has resigned the position as the Chairman and remained as a member of the nomination Committee. In 
addition, he also serves as a member of both the remuneration Committee and the audit Committee.  he was appointed 
as a member for the audit Committee on �� october 2007.  he is also a Director of all subsidiary companies of Imaspro 
Corporation Berhad.

he holds a Diploma in Statistics from Mara Institute of technology (now known as uitM) and a postgraduate Diploma 
from the Securities Institute of australia. he began his career as an Investment analyst with Malaysian national 
reinsurance Berhad, kuala lumpur and left as an Investment Manager in �986.  thereafter, he joined kaB Group as the 
Corporate planning Manager. In kaB Group, he undertook various feasibility studies on the privatisation of toxic and 
hazardous waste management as well as on the cultivation of chilli and tomato.  In �99�, he returned to the investment 
and securities industry when he joined BBMB Securities Sdn. Bhd. as Manager of Institutional Sales.  he left BBMB Securities 
in �992 to join uMBC Securities Sdn. Bhd. as Manager, Dealing before assuming the position of Senior Manager, Dealing 
in MGI Securities Berhad in �995.  he left MGI Securities in �998 and was based in london as Fund Manager of trIM 
Capital Management ltd.  In 2000, he returned to Malaysia and was employed as head of Islamic products unit, a start-
up division to participate in the evolving opportunities in Islamic banking, in Melor permata Capital Management Sdn. 
Bhd.  he left the company in the same year to pursue his personal interest in the investment and securities industry.  

he has no directorship in other public companies.

encik Mohd Shafek Bin Isa holds �50,000 shares directly in the Company and �9,��8,704 shares indirectly (deemed 
interested by virtue of his interest in Sunbina Dunia Sdn. Bhd., a substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant 
to Section 6a of the Companies act, �965).  he does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major 
shareholder of the Company and does not have any conflict of interest with the Company.  he has not been convicted 
for offences within the past ten (�0) years other than traffic offences, if any.  he attended all five (5) Board meetings held 
in the financial year.

 
tOng ChIn hen
Managing Director

Mr. tong Chin hen, a Malaysian and aged 52, is the Managing Director. he was appointed to the Board as Managing 
Director since �5 november 2005 and also a member of the audit Committee.  he resigned as a member of the audit 
Committee on �� october 2007.  he is also a Director of all subsidiary companies of Imaspro Corporation Berhad.

he is a member of the Institute of Directors in the united kingdom.  his career started in �975 when he joined ancom Sdn. 
Bhd., which went public in �990, and was the first agrochemical plant to be established in Malaysia.  he left the company 
in end �992 while he was the executive Commercial Manager.  his tenure at ancom Berhad enabled him to experience 
first-hand most of the key activities of an international agrochemical company.  early signs of his entrepreneurship surfaced 
when he was with ancom Berhad where he initiated and successfully opened up with the pacific Islands markets for the 
company.  he was also the first ancom employee to initiate the sourcing of critical materials for production directly from 
suppliers in China to avoid mark-up by middlemen and traders.  In June �993, he bought a stake in Imaspro resources 
Sdn. Bhd. (“IrSB”) and assumed the position of General Manager.  he has been solely responsible for the growth of the 
company to be a leading pesticide player in Malaysia over the last fourteen (�4) years.  he was also directly responsible 
for creating several export markets for the company, including pioneering exports of pesticides to russia and eastern 
european countries.  to-date, the products of IrSB have been exported to approximately thirty (30) countries worldwide.  
his ability to lead a Malaysian agrochemical company to break into and increase its overseas presence amidst growing 
trade protectionism reflects his market-savvy approach to business and the extent of his networking in the international 
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agrochemical business.  he has been a regular participant in the annual British Crop protection Conference & exhibition 
in the united kingdom, the largest annual gathering of players in the global agrochemical industry since the �990s. 

he has no directorship in other public companies.

Mr. tong Chin hen holds �50,000 shares directly in the Company and 33,947,064 shares indirectly (deemed interested 
by virtue of his interest in Swiss revenue Sdn. Bhd., a substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant to Section 6a 
of the Companies act, �965).  he is the younger brother of Mr. tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi and does not have any 
conflict of interest with the Company.  he has not been convicted for offences within the past ten (�0) years other than 
traffic offences, if any.  he attended all five (5) Board meetings held in the financial year.

 
tOng Ah WAh @ tOng Chun hWI
executive Director

Mr. tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi, a Malaysian and aged 59, is an executive Director. he was appointed to the Board 
since �5 november 2005.

he holds a Bachelor of Science in Chemical engineering from national Cheng kung university in taiwan and has been 
a member of Institute kimia Malaysia since �978. upon his graduation in �972, he joined Malaya acid works Sdn. Bhd. 
(“MawSB”) and was later promoted as a process engineer in �977.  During his tenure with MawSB, he was extensively 
involved in various fields in chemical manufacturing industries including amongst others, project planning, product 
development, plant expansion, quality control and research and development.  he achieved a Malaysian first in �987 
when he pioneered the development and manufacturing of potassium silicate glass and liquid on a commercial scale.  
the product is now supplied widely to the local and overseas markets. he retired from MawSB in 2004 as Senior Chemical 
engineer of the company.

he is currently an Independent non-executive Director of Stone Master Corporation Berhad. he is also a member of its 
audit Committee.

Mr. tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi holds 2,67�,498 shares directly in the Company.  he is the elder brother of Mr. tong 
Chin hen and does not have any conflict of interest with the Company.  he has not been convicted for offences within the 
past ten (�0) years other than traffic offences, if any.  he attended all five (5) Board meetings held in the financial year.

 
dR. leOng WAn leOng
Independent non-executive Director

Dr. leong wan leong, a Malaysian and aged 58, is an Independent non-executive Director. he was appointed to the Board 
since �5 november 2005.  he serves as the Chairman of the audit Committee.  on 4 February 2008, he has resigned the 
position as the Chairman and remained as a member of the audit Committee.  In addition, he is also a member of both the 
remuneration Committee and the nomination Committee. he was appointed as a Chairman for both the remuneration 
Committee and the nomination Committee on 27 May 2008 and 28 august 2008 respectively.

he holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical engineering from the national Cheng kung university, taiwan and 
a Master of Science Degree in process analysis and Development from the university of aston Birmingham, united 
kingdom. he joined the university of Malaya in �977 where he lectured, tutored and conducted research.  he received 
his phD Degree from the Departmental of Chemical engineering, university of Malaya in �984.  Between mid �980s until 
�996, he held various positions at the palm oil research Institute of Malaysia (“porIM”), currently known as Malaysia 
palm oil Board. he is a trained assessor for the implementation and auditing of ISo 9000 Quality System for the palm oil 
industry and also the main assessing officer for porIM’s Certificate of Competency Schemes for palm oil refineries and 
palm oil mills.  In addition, he is also responsible for organising Diploma and other certified training programs for palm 

proFIle oF DIreCtorS (continued)
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proFIle oF DIreCtorS (continued)

oil mill engineers, production supervisors and laboratory conductors. Currently, he has interests over several private 
limited companies involved in marketing and trading of products.

he has no directorship in other public companies.  

Dr. leong wan leong holds 50,000 shares directly in the Company.  he does not have any family relationship with any 
Director and/or major shareholder of the Company and does not have any conflict of interest with the Company.  he has 
not been convicted for offences within the past ten (�0) years other than traffic offences, if any.  he attended all five (5) 
Board meetings held in the financial year.

tAI keAt ChAI
Independent non-executive Director 

Mr. tai keat Chai, a Malaysian and aged 54, is an Independent non-executive Director. he was appointed to the Board 
since �5 november 2005.  he also serves as the Chairman of the remuneration Committee and a member of both the 
nomination Committee and the audit Committee.  on 4 February 2008, he was appointed as a Chairman of the audit 
Committee. In addition, he has resigned as the Chairman of the remuneration Committee on 27 May 2008 and remained 
as a member of the remuneration Committee. 

he is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered accountants in england & wales and a member of the Malaysian 
Institute of accountants. he began his career with kpMG london as an audit Senior in �977 and a year later joined 
pricewaterhouseCoopers in kuala lumpur, as a Qualified assistant.  In �98�, he joined alliance Merchant Bank Berhad 
as an assistant Manager and subsequently promoted to Senior Manager (Corporate Finance).  In �988, he returned to 
pricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting Sdn. Bhd. as Manager for about a year before joining Berjaya Group Berhad as a 
General Manager (Investment).  Subsequently, in �990, he ventured into the stockbroking industry and has worked in 
SJ Securities Sdn. Bhd., a.a. anthony Securities Sdn. Bhd. and eCM libra avenue Securities Berhad as General Manager, 
Director and a dealer’s representative respectively.

he is presently a Board member of Chuan huat resources Berhad, Disccomp Berhad, toyochem Corporation Berhad, MeSB 
Berhad, CuSCapI Berhad, peCD Berhad, opensys (M) Berhad, MIDF amanah Investment Bank Berhad (Formerly known 
as utama Merchant Bank Berhad), Sunway Infrastructure Berhad and several other private limited companies.  

Mr. tai keat Chai holds 50,000 shares directly in the Company.  he does not have any family relationship with any Director 
and/or major shareholder of the Company and does not have any conflict of interest with the Company.  he has not 
been convicted for offences within the past ten (�0) years other than traffic offences, if any.  he attended all five (5) Board 
meetings held in the financial year.
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Corporate GoVernanCe StateMentS

the Board of Directors of Imaspro Corporation Berhad (“the Board”) fully appreciates the importance of adopting high 
standards of Corporate Governance within the Group as expressed in the principles and Best practices set out in the 
Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance (revised 2007) (“the Code”).  the Board has been committed to ensuring that the 
highest standards of Corporate Governance are consistently observed by the Group.  apart from observance of the Code, 
the Board has also moved to put in place stringent parameters and measures for adherence by the management.

By promoting integrity and professionalism the management of the Group’s affairs, the Board aims to enhance business 
efficacy, transparency, accountability and also to protect and achieve the ultimate objective of realising long-term 
shareholders’ value, the financial performance of the Group as well as the interests of other stakeholders.

the Board is therefore pleased to report that during the financial year ended 30 June 2008, it had practiced good Corporate 
Governance in directing and managing the business affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”).

BOARd Of dIReCtORS

Board Composition and Balance

the Board currently has five (5) members, comprising two (2) executive Directors and three (3) non-executive Directors.  
of the three (3) non-executive Directors, two (2) are independent and hence fulfill the prescribed requirements for one-
third (�/3) of the membership of the Board to be independent Members.

the Board is a well-balanced Board with an effective mix of executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors, 
which is in line with the Code and is of the appropriate size and with the right mix of skills and experience.   this balance 
enables the Board to provide clear and effective leadership to the Group and to bring informed and independent 
judgement to many aspects of the Group’s strategies and performances so as to ensure that the highest standards of 
professionalism, conduct, transparency and integrity are maintained by the Group.

the executive Directors who have good knowledge of the business are responsible for implementing the corporate 
strategies and policies as well as charged with the management of the day-to-day operations of the business.
 

the Independent Directors play a pivotal role in corporate accountability.  none of the non-executive Directors participate 
in the day-to-day management of the Group.  the presence of the Independent non-executive Directors are essential 
in providing the Group with a wider general experience of strategy formulation, unbiased and independent opinions, 
advice, judgements, objective view of the performance of the management and professionalism to ensure that adequate 
systems are used to safeguard the interests, not only to the Group, but also to minority shareholders and stakeholders 
of the Group.

the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing Director is clearly defined to ensure that there is a 
balance of power and authority.  the Chairman is responsible for ensuring Board effectiveness, organising the business 
of the Board, setting its agenda and facilitates the constructive relations between the executive and non-executive 
Directors whilst the Managing Director has overall responsibility over the operating units, organisational effectiveness 
and coordinating the development and implementation of business and corporate strategy as well as the implementation 
of Board policies and decisions.

Board Responsibilities

the Board is primarily responsible for the Group’s overall Corporate Governance, strategic plans, business performance, 
succession planning, risk management, as well as reviewing the adequacy and integrity of its internal control and 
management information systems.
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the Board meets regularly to review the Group’s corporate strategies, business operations and financial performance. 
Matters significant to the Group’s business and finances including approval of the quarterly results and annual report, annual 
budget, major capital expenditure, major acquisition and disposal of assets are also discussed at these meetings.

Board Meetings and Supply of Information

the Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis with additional meetings being convened as and when necessary.  In 
the meeting, the Board will deliberate on and consider matters relating to the Group’s financial performance, significant 
investments, corporate development, strategic issues and business plan.  the Company Secretary is responsible for 
ensuring that Board policies and procedures are complied with and all proceedings of the Board and Board Committee 
are recorded and draft minutes are circulated to the Directors for confirmation prior to being approved.

During the financial year, five (5) Board Meetings took place.  Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board 
Meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2008 are as follows:

name of director no. of Meetings Attended
 
Mohd Shafek Bin Isa 5/5
tong Chin hen 5/5
tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi 5/5
Dr. leong wan leong 5/5
tai keat Chai 5/5
 
Directors’ commitment, resources and time allocated to the Company are evident from the attendance record, where 
no Directors were absent from the Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2008, hence complying 
with paragraph �5.05 of listing requirements of Bursa Securities.

all Directors are provided with an agenda and a compilation of Board papers prior to each Board Meeting.  the Board papers 
include minutes of the last Board Meeting, agenda for the current meeting and any report and documents pertaining to 
the issues to be discussed at the Board Meeting.  the Board papers are issued in sufficient time to enable the Directors 
to obtain a comprehensive understanding of the issues to be deliberated upon to enable them to arrive at an informed 
decision.  the Chairman of the Board chairs the Board Meetings while the Managing Director leads the presentation and 
provides explanations on the Board reports.  Senior Management staff may be invited to attend the Board Meetings to 
explain and clarify matters being tabled.

In exercising their duties, the Directors have unrestricted access to timely and accurate information within the Group, 
whether as a full Board or in their individual capacity.  all Directors also have direct access to the advice and the services 
of the Group’s Company Secretary.  the Directors are regularly updated and advised by the Company Secretary on new 
statutory and regulatory requirements and their impact and the implication on the Company and Directors in carrying 
out their fiduciary duties and responsibilities.  In addition, the Board may also seek professional opinion and independent 
advice from external consultants in the course of fulfilling their responsibilities, if necessary, at the Company’s expense. 

Appointment and Re-election of Board Members

the Board appoints its members through a formal process that is consistent with the Company’s articles of association.  
the nomination Committee has been entrusted with the responsibilities for proposing and recommending the right 
candidates to the Board for appointment.  In addition, the nomination Committee also has the function of assessing the 
effectiveness of the Board, reviewing the skills, professionalism, integrity and competences of individual Directors and 
the composition of the various committees of the Board.

Corporate GoVernanCe StateMentS (continued)
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In accordance to the Company’s articles of association, any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next 
following annual General Meeting (“aGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-election. 

the articles of association also requires that at least one-third (�/3) of the Directors including executive Directors, to 
retire from office by rotation and be eligible for re-election at every aGM.  all Directors shall submit for re-election at 
least once every three (3) years from the date of appointment in compliance with the listing requirements of the Bursa 
Securities.

pursuant to Section �29(2) of the Companies act, �965, Directors who are over seventy (70) years of age are required to 
submit themselves for re-appointment annually.  none of the Directors of the Company has attained the age of seventy 
(70) years for the financial year under review.

directors’ training

In compliance with the listing requirements of Bursa Securities, all Directors have attended and successfully completed 
the Mandatory accreditation programme (“Map”) conducted by the research Institute of Investment analysis Malaysia 
(“rIIaM”).

In addition, the Board is constantly encouraged to attend programmes and seminars to keep abreast with the latest 
developments in the market place as well as the new statutory and regulatory requirements.

During the financial year, all Directors together with Senior Management have attended a one day course on “risk 
Management”.  From time to time, the Directors also receive updates and briefings, particularly on regulatory and legal 
developments relevant to the Company’s business.

directors’ Remuneration

the remuneration of the executive Directors consists of basic salary and other emoluments. other benefits customary 
to the Group are made available as appropriate.  any salary review takes into account market rates and the performance 
of the individual and the Group.  the non-executive Directors’ remuneration comprises fees that reflect their expected 
roles and responsibilities, including any additional work and contributions required.  In addition, each Director is paid 
a meeting allowance for each Board and Committee meeting they attended.  the Directors’ fees are approved annually 
by the shareholders at the aGM.

Details of remuneration of Directors who served during the financial year ended 30 June 2008 are as follows:

 
Aggregate Remuneration by Category 

Salaries and bonuses
Fees
pension costs – defined contribution plan
total
   

executive
directors

RM

�,420,000
�68,000
�95,900

�,783,900

non-executive
directors

RM

-
84,000

-
84,000
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For the financial year ended 30 June 2008, the numbers of Directors whose remuneration fall within the respective bands 
are as follows:

Range of Remuneration 

rM50,000 & below
rM350,00� to rM400,000
rM400,00� to rM600,000
rM�,000,000 to rM�,200,000

Board Committees

In order to ensure the effective discharge of its fiduciary duties, the Board has established various Board Committees to 
assist the Board in the running of the Group.  this is to allow the members of the Board Committees to deliberate and 
examine issues within their terms of reference in greater detail and subsequently recommend and report to the Board.  the 
functions and terms of reference of the committees, as well as the authority delegated by the Board to these committees, 
have been clearly defined and approved by the Board.  all Board Committees do not have executive powers but only the 
power to make recommendations to the Board.  Directors serving on the Board’s Committees together with their profiles 
are identified in the Directors’ profile beginning on page 6.

the Board Committees for the financial year under review are as follows:

(a) Audit Committee

the audit Committee was established pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors on �5 november 2005.  the 
audit Committee operates under a clearly defined terms of reference stating its roles and responsibilities in ensuring 
the quality and integrity of the practices of the Group.

the audit Committee presently comprises three (3) members of the Board of which two (2) are Independent non-
executive Directors and one (�) is non-executive Chairman:

i) tai keat Chai (Independent non-executive Director) – appointed as Chairman on 4 February 2008
ii) Dr. leong wan leong (Independent non-executive Director) – Formerly Chairman, redesignated as Member on 

4 February 2008
iii) Mohd Shafek Bin Isa (non-executive Chairman) – appointed on �� october 2007
iv) tong Chin hen (Managing Director) - resigned on �� october 2007

the audit Committee has held a total of five (5) meetings during the course of the financial year ended 30 June 2008.  
the terms of reference, attendance for the meetings and activities of the audit Committee are stated in the audit 
Committee report beginning on page �7.

(b) nomination Committee

the nomination Committee was established on �7 January 2006.  the nomination Committee is responsible for 
ensuring the Board has the appropriate balance and size, and recommending the right candidates with the necessary 
mix of skills, experience and competencies to be appointed to the Board.

executive
directors

-
-
�
�

non-executive
directors

3
-
-
-

number of directors



1�AnnuAl RePORt 2008

Corporate GoVernanCe StateMentS (continued)

the nomination Committee comprises three (3) members, all of whom are non-executive Directors. of the three (3) 
non-executive Directors, two (2) are independent:

i) Dr. leong wan leong (Independent non-executive Director) -appointed as Chairman on 28 august 2008
ii) Mohd Shafek Bin Isa (non-executive Chairman) - Formerly Chairman, redesignated as Member on 28 august  
 2008
iii) tai keat Chai (Independent non-executive Director)

During the financial year ended 30 June 2008, the Committee met once and the meeting was attended by all its 
members.

the terms of reference of the nomination Committee are as follows:

• to review, recommend and consider suitable candidates to the Board of the Company and subsidiaries of the 
Group, including committees of the Board; 

• to recommend to the Board the optimum size of the Board, formalise a transparent procedure for proposing 
new nominees to the Board and Board Committees and ensure that the investment of the minority shareholders 
are fairly reflected on the Board;

• to review and determine the mix of skills, experience and other qualities, including core competencies of non-
executive Directors, on an annual basis;

• to assess the Directors on an on-going basis and the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the committees of 
the Board and the contribution of each individual Director;

• to ensure that there is an orientation and education programme for newly appointed Directors with respect to 
the business and management of the Group;

• to consider and recommend training or skills upgrade for Directors in furtherance of their duties as 
appropriate;

• to provide feedbacks to Directors in respect of their individual performance;

• to provide constructive input to each individual Director as to how he or she may be better contribute to the 
functioning of the Board; and

• to ensure the composition of the Board is in accordance with the Memorandum and articles of association and 
the requirements for Best practice of Corporate Governance.

all recommendations of the nomination Committee are subject to the endorsement of the Board.

(c) Remuneration Committee

the remuneration Committee was established on �7 January 2006.  the Committee is responsible for carrying out 
annual reviews whereupon recommendations are submitted to the Board on the overall remuneration policy for 
Directors and key Senior Management officers, to ensure that the remuneration policy remains in support of its 
corporate objectives and shareholder value, and is in tandem with its culture and strategy.

the remuneration Committee comprises three (3) members, all of whom are non-executive Directors.  of the three 
(3) non-executive Directors, two (2) are independent:
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i) Dr. leong wan leong (Independent non-executive Director) – appointed as Chairman on 27 May 2008
ii) tai keat Chai (Independent non-executive Director) – Formerly Chairman, redesignated as Member on 27 May 

2008
iii) Mohd Shafek Bin Isa (non-executive Chairman)

Meetings of the remuneration Committee are held as and when required, and at least once a year.  During the financial 
year ended 30 June 2008, the Committee met twice and the meeting was attended by all its members.

the terms of reference of the remuneration Committee are as follows:

• to establish and review the terms and conditions of employment and remuneration of executive Directors and 
key Senior Management officers of the Group to ensure that rewards commensurate with their contributions to 
the Group’s growth and profitability; and supports the Group’s objectives and shareholder value and is consistent 
with the Group’s culture and strategy; 

• to review annually the performance of the executive Directors and recommend to the Board specific adjustments 
in remuneration and/or reward payments if any reflecting their contributions for the year;

• to ensure the level of remuneration for non-executive Directors and Independent Directors reflects their 
experience and level of responsibilities undertaken and contribution to the effective functioning of the Board.  
reviews and recommends changes to the Board where necessary; and

• to keep abreast of the terms and conditions of service of the executive Directors including their total remuneration 
package for market comparability.  reviews and recommends changes to the Board where necessary.

all recommendations of the remuneration Committee are subject to the endorsement of the Board.

InVeStORS RelAtIOnS And ShARehOldeRS COMMunICAtIOn

the Board clearly recognises the importance of transparency and accountability to all its stakeholders, particularly its 
shareholders and investors as it ensures that market credibility and investors’ confidence are maintained.  through 
extensive disclosures of appropriate and relevant information, using various channels of communication on a timely 
basis, the Group aims to effectively provide shareholders and investors with information to fulfill transparency and 
accountability objectives.

at this juncture, the channel of communication to shareholders, stakeholders and general public for the overall 
performance and operations of the Group’s business activities are press releases, public announcements on quarterly 
basis, annual report and disclosures to the Bursa Securities.

Meetings with institutional investors, fund managers and analysts from time to time provide an additional avenue for 
the Board and Management to convey information about Group performance, strategy and other matters affecting 
shareholders’ interests.

the Company’s annual General Meeting (“aGM”) is the principal forum for dialogue with all shareholders and the Board 
encourages shareholders to attend and participate in the aGM.  the notice of meeting and the annual report are sent out 
to shareholders at least 2� days before the date of the meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.  
a presentation is given by the Chairman to explain the Group’s strategy, performance and major developments to 
shareholders during the aGM.  Shareholders are accorded both the opportunity and time to raise questions or offer 
constructive criticism pertaining to the operations and financial matters of the Group; whilst the Board and Senior 
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Management will provide the answers and appropriate clarifications to issues raised.  the external auditors will also be 
present to provide their professional and independent clarification on issues and concerns raised by the shareholders, 
if necessary.

Besides the key channels of communication through the annual report, general meetings and announcements to Bursa 
Securities as well as analyst and media briefings, there is also continuous effort to enhance the Group’s website at www.
imaspro.com as a channel of communication and information dissemination.  Continuous improvement and development 
of the website will be undertaken by the Group to ensure easy and convenient access. 

ACCOuntABIlItY And AudIt

financial Reporting

the Board aims to present a clear, balanced, insightful and timely assessment of the Group’s financial position, performance 
and prospects by ensuring quality financial reporting through the annual audited financial statements and quarterly 
financial results to its stakeholders, in particular, shareholders, investors and the regulatory authorities.

In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly announcements of results to the shareholders, the Directors 
aims to ensure that the financial statements and quarterly announcements are prepared in accordance with the Companies 
act, �965 and applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Group.  the accounting policies and methods once adopted, are consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable judgements and estimates.

the audit Committee assists the Board in scrutinising information for disclosure to ensure the quality of financial reporting 
and adequacy of such information, prior to submission to the Board for its approval.

the Directors have responsibility for ensuring that the Group keeps proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Companies act, �965 and applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia.

In addition, the Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets for the Group and to 
prevent and detect fraud as well as other irregularities.

Internal Control

the Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal controls that provides 
reasonable assessment of effective and efficient operations, internal financial controls and compliance with laws and 
regulations as well as with internal procedures and guidelines.  Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate 
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 
material misstatement, errors, frauds or losses.  the effectiveness of the systems of internal controls of the Group is 
reviewed periodically by the audit Committee.

the Statement on Internal Control, which provides an overview of the state of the internal control within ICB Group, is 
set out in page 2�-22 of this annual report.

Relationship with Auditors

the Group’s external auditors continue to provide independent assurance to shareholders on the Group’s operational 
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control and financial statements.  the Board has maintained a closed and transparent relationship with the external 
auditors in seeking professional advice.

the auditors are invited to attend the audit Committee meetings as and when required apart from the scheduled 
meeting when the external auditors present the audited financial statements of the Group to the Committee.  During 
such meetings, the auditors highlight and discuss the nature, scope of the audit, internal controls and problems that 
may require the attention of the Board.

the audit Committee meets with the external auditors to discuss their audit plan, audit findings and the financial 
statements.  the audit Committee also meets the external auditors without the presence of the executive Directors and 
the Management at least twice a year.

a summary of activities and the role of the audit Committee in relation to both the internal and external auditors are 
described in the audit Committee report beginning on page �7.

Compliance with the Code

the Board is satisfied that the Group has maintained a high standard of Corporate Governance and has strived to achieve 
the highest level of integrity and ethical standard, in all its business dealings, including compliance with the Code 
throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

this statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board.
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the Board of Directors of Imaspro Corporation Berhad is pleased to present the audit Committee report for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2008.

MeMBeRShIP And MeetIngS

the audit Committee presently comprises three (3) members of the Board, of which two (2) are Independent non-executive 
Directors and one (�) is the non-executive Chairman.  During the financial year under review, the audit Committee held 
five (5) meetings.  In addition to the above meetings, the audit Committee also met with the external auditors in separate 
private sessions twice during the financial year without the presence of management.

the members of the Committee and the attendance at the meetings during the financial year ended 30 June 2008 are 
stated below:

name of director

tai keat Chai 

Dr. leong wan leong 

Mohd Shafek Bin Isa

tong Chin hen

teRMS Of RefeRenCe

1. Membership 

the audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors from amongst its Directors and shall consist of not 
less than three (3) members, all of whom must be non-executive Directors, with majority of them being Independent.  
the Chairman, who shall be elected by the audit Committee, shall be an Independent non-executive Director.  no 
alternate Director shall be appointed as a member of the audit Committee.

the Board shall at all times ensure that at least one (�) member of the audit Committee:
(i) must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of accountants (“MIa”); or
(ii) if he is not a member of the MIa, he must have at least three (3) years’ working experience and:

• he must have passed the examinations specified in part I of the �st Schedule of the accountants act, �967; 
or

• he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in part II of the �st Schedule of 
the accountants act, �967.

at least once in every three (3) years, the Board of Directors must review the term of office and performance of the 
audit Committee and each of its members to determine whether the audit Committee and its members carried out 
their duties in accordance to the terms of reference.

auDIt CoMMIttee report

designation

Chairman,
Independent non-executive Director
(appointed as Chairman on 4 February 2008)

Independent non-executive Director
(Formerly Chairman, redesignated as Member on 4 
February 2008)

non-executive Chairman
(appointed on �� october 2007)

Managing Director
(resigned on �� october 2007)

no. of Meetings 
Attended

5/5

5/5

3/3

2/2
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2. Meetings and reporting procedures

the audit Committee shall convene meetings as and when required, and at least four (4) times during the financial 
year.  the Chairman of the audit Committee, or the Secretary on the requisition of any members, the internal auditors 
or the external auditors, shall at any time summon a meeting by giving reasonable notice.  a quorum shall be two 
(2) members present and majority of which must be Independent Directors.

the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer and the Company Secretary shall normally attend all meetings 
of the audit Committee but may be requested to leave a meeting as and when deemed necessary by the audit 
Committee.  the presence of the internal and external auditors will be requested, if required.  other Board members 
may attend meetings upon the invitation of the audit Committee.  the audit Committee shall meet the external 
auditors without the presence of the executive Directors and employees at least twice a year.

the Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the audit Committee responsible for drawing up the agenda for 
each meeting in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee.  the agenda shall be distributed to all members 
of the audit Committee and the internal and external auditors before the meeting together with supporting papers.  
the minutes of the meeting of the audit Committee shall be circulated to all members of the Board.  the Chairman 
of the audit Committee shall report on each meeting to the Board and all recommendations of the audit Committee 
shall be submitted to the Board for approval.

3. Authority

the audit Committee is authorised by the Board and at the cost of the Company to:

• investigate any activity within its terms of reference, or as directed by the Board;
• determine and obtain the resources required to perform its duties, including approving the budget for the 

external and internal audit functions;
• have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company or the Group for the purpose 

of discharging its functions and responsibilities;
• have direct communication channels with the external auditors and persons carrying out the internal audit 

function for the Group;
• direct the internal audit function in the Group;
• approve the appointment of the head of internal audit;
• engage independent professional advisors and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience 

and expertise if necessary; 
• to review the adequacy of the structure and terms of reference of the Board audit Committees; and
• convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding the attendance of other 

Directors and employees of the Company, whenever deemed necessary.

4. Responsibilities and duties

the responsibilities and duties of the audit Committee shall include the following:

Corporate financial Reporting
i) to review and recommend acceptance or otherwise of accounting policies, principles and practices;
ii) to review the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Group and the Company for recommendation 

to the Board for approval, focusing particularly on:
• any changes in or implementation of new accounting policies and practices;
• major judgemental areas, significant and unusual events;

auDIt CoMMIttee report (continued)
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• significant adjustments arising from the audit;
• the going concern assumptions; and
• compliance with the applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia, listing requirement of the 

Bursa Securities and other legal and statutory requirements.
iii) to review with management and the external auditors the results of the audit, including any difficulties 

encountered.

enterprise-wide Risk Management
i) to review the adequacy of and to provide independent assurance to the Board of the effectiveness of risk 

management functions of the Group; and
ii) to ensure that the principles and requirements of managing risk are consistently adopted throughout the 

Group.

Internal Control
i) to assess the quality and effectiveness of the systems of the internal control and the efficiency of the Group’s 

operations;
ii) to review the findings on the internal control in the Group by internal and external auditors; and
iii) to review and approve the Statement on Internal Control for the annual report as required under listing 

requirements of Bursa Securities.
 

 Internal Audit
i) to approve the corporate audit charters of internal audit functions in the Group;
ii) to ensure that the internal audit functions have appropriate standing in the Group and have the necessary 

authority and resources to carry out their work. this includes a review of the organisational structure, resources, 
budgets and qualifications of the internal audit personnel;

iii) to review internal audit reports and management’s response and actions taken in respect of these and report 
to the Board accordingly;

iv) to review the adequacy of internal audit plans and the scope of audits, functions, competency and resources 
of the internal audit functions and ensure that they are carried out without any hindrance;

v) to be informed of resignations and transfers of senior internal audit staff and providing resigning/transferred 
staff an opportunity in expressing their views; and

vi) to direct any special investigation to be carried out by internal audit.

external Audit
i) to consider the appointment, resignation and dismissal of external auditors and their audit fee;
ii) to review external audit reports, major findings and management responses and actions taken thereto.  where 

actions are not taken within an adequate timeframe by the management, the audit Committee will report the 
matter to the Board; and

iii) to review external audit plans and scope of the audit work.

Corporate governance
i) to review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the results of 

management’s investigation and follow up (including disciplinary action) any instances of non-compliance;
ii) to review the findings of any examinations by regulatory authorities;
iii) to consider any related party transaction and conflict of interest that may arise within the Group including any 

transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of integrity;
iv) to review and approve the Statement of Corporate Governance for the annual report as required under listing 

requirements of Bursa Securities;
v) to review the investor relations programme and shareholder communications policy for the Company;
vi) to examine instances and matters that may have compromised the principles of Corporate Governance and 

report back to the Board;

auDIt CoMMIttee report (continued)



�0 IMASPRO CORPORAtIOn BeRhAd (657527-h)

vii) to develop and regularly review the Group’s Code of Corporate Governance and Business ethics; and
viii) where the audit Committee is of the view that a matter reported by it to the Board has not been satisfactorily 

resolved, resulting in a breach of the listing requirements of the Bursa Securities, the audit Committee must 
promptly report such matters to Bursa Securities.

SuMMARY Of ACtIVItIeS 

the audit Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its terms of reference during the financial year.

the main activities undertaken by the audit Committee included the following:

a) reviewed the interim financial reports relating to the quarterly reporting of the Group to ensure adequacy of disclosure 
of information essential to a fair and full presentation of the financial affairs of the Group for recommendation to 
the Board for approval for the release of the said quarterly reporting;

b) reviewed the audited financial statements before submitting them to the Board, ensuring that the financial statements 
were prepared in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and provisions of the 
Companies act, �965.  any significant issues resulting from the audit of the financial statements by the external 
auditors were deliberated;

c) evaluated the performance of the external auditors, reviewed the external auditors’ scope of work, audit plan and 
their audit fees and recommending the appointment of external auditors at the annual General Meeting;

d) reviewed with the external auditors the results of the audit and the management letter (if any), including management’s 
response;

e) discussed the internal audit plan, programmes and resources requirement and skill levels of the internal auditors 
for the year and assessed the performance of the internal audit function;

f ) reviewed the internal auditor’s report, which highlighted the audit issues, recommendations and management’s 
response.  Discussed with Management, actions taken to improve the system of internal control based on improvement 
opportunities identified in the internal audit reports;

g) reviewed the application of Corporate Governance principles and the extent of the Group’s compliance with the Best 
practices set out under the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance for the purpose of preparing the Corporate 
Governance Statements and Statement on Internal Control pursuant to the listing requirements of the Bursa 
Securities; and

h) reviewed and discussed related party transaction (“rpt”) and recurrent related party transactions (“rrpt”) to 
ascertain if the transactions are conducted at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms, and that the internal 
control procedures with regards to such transactions are sufficient.

this statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board.

auDIt CoMMIttee report (continued)
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Introduction

the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance stipulates that the Board of Directors of listed companies should maintain 
a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the companies’ assets. 

In accordance with the listing requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), the Board of Directors 
of Imaspro Corporation Berhad is pleased to provide the following statement on the state of internal control of the Group 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2008. the statement has been prepared in accordance with the “Statement on Internal 
Control – Guidance for Directors of public listed Companies” issued by the Institute of Internal auditors Malaysia and 
adopted by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

directors’ Responsibilities

the Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ 
investment and the assets of the Group and for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the system. the system of internal 
control covers not only financial controls but operational and compliance controls. however, the Board recognises that 
reviewing of the Group’s systems of internal control is a concerted and continuing process, designed to manage rather 
than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. accordingly, the Group’s system of internal control 
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement, fraud or losses. Furthermore, 
because of changing circumstances and conditions, the effectiveness of an internal control system may vary over time. 
the system of internal controls is to enable the Group to achieve its corporate objectives within an acceptable risk profile 
and cannot be expected to eliminate all the risks identified.

Current Risk Management framework

risk management is an integral part of the Group business operations and it is subject to periodic review by the Board 
of Directors. the Group adopted a structured risk management framework with discussions involving different levels of 
managements to identify and address risks faced by the Group. Based on the assessment of the internal control systems 
of the Group, the Board of Directors is of the view that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating, monitoring 
and managing the significant risks affecting the achievement of its business objectives in their daily activities throughout 
the financial year up to the date of approval of the annual report.

the Audit Committee and Internal Audit function

the audit Committee reviews internal control issues identified by internal auditors, external auditors and Management 
and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems.

During the financial year, the Group outsourced its internal audit function to an independent firm of consultants.

the internal audit team will assist the audit Committee in discharging internal control function in which to assess the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls and accounting control procedures of the Group. the internal 
audit team independently reported to the audit Committee its activities, significant results, findings and the necessary 
recommendations or changes. the Board will further review the minutes of the audit Committee report and Internal 
audit progress report to gain assurance on the effectiveness, adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls in 
operations. at the onset, the annual audit programme will be presented to the audit Committee for it’s approval before 
commencement of the following financial year. the internal audit team is totally independent. It has no involvement in 
the operations of the Group and is not involved in providing any form of advisory to the Management of the Group. 

StateMent on Internal Control
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Other key Internal Control features

key features of the process established within the Group which can contribute to a sound system of internal control are 
as follows:

• within the Group, there are organisational structures in place for each operating unit with clearly defined 
  responsibilities and levels of authority.  Management of each operating unit has clear responsibility for identifying 
  risk affecting their unit and the overall Group’s business as a whole.  they are also charged with instituting adequate  
 procedures and internal controls to mitigate and monitor such risks on an ongoing basis.

• operating policies and procedures that serve as general management guide for daily operation. these policies and 
  procedures are reviewed on a regularly basis to reflect changing risks or to resolve any operational deficiencies.  It 
  is also to promote efficiency and accountability for the Group.

• as part of the performance monitoring process, management information in the form of forecasts and quarterly  
 management accounts and reports are provided to the Board for review and approval.

• there has been active participation by the executive Directors in the day-to-day running of business operations, 
  and regular dialogue with senior management of the respective operating units.  Management meetings attended 
  by the Managing Director, executive Director and respective head of the operating units are held to identify, discuss  
 and report on operational performance, business strategy, financial and key management issue of each operating  
 units.

• adequate insurance provision and security measures on major assets of the Group are provided to ensure that it  
 sufficiently safeguards against any mishap that will result in material losses to the Group.

• training and development programmes are established to ensure that staff is constantly kept up-to-date with the  
 constant technological changing environment in order to be competent in the industry in line with achieving the 
  Group’s business objectives.

the Board confirms that the Group’s system of internal control was generally satisfactory throughout the financial year and 
up to the date of approval of the annual report.  there were no major internal control weaknesses that require disclosure 
in the annual report and corrective actions have been taken on control exceptions identified.  the Board continues to 
take measures to strengthen the control environment.

ReVIeW Of the StAteMent BY eXteRnAl AudItORS

as required by paragraph �5.24 of the Bursa Securities listing requirements, the external auditors have reviewed this 
Statement on Internal Control for inclusion in the annual report for the financial year ended 30 June 2008.  this review 
was performed in accordance with recommended practice Guide (“rpG”) 5 issued by Malaysian Institute of accountants.  
Based on the review, the external auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that 
causes them to believe that this Statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board 
in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls.

this statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board.
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the Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2008.

PRInCIPAl ACtIVItIeS

the principal activity of the Company is investment holding. the principal activities of the subsidiary companies are set out in note 7 to the 
financial statements. there were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

ReSultS

  group Company
  RM RM
   
profit for the year �6,322,39� 3,07�,9�8

attributable to:
equity holders of the Company �6,322,39� 3,07�,9�8
Minority interest  - -
  �6,322,39� 3,07�,9�8

there were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the statements of changes 
in equity.

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantially 
affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

dIVIdendS

the amount of dividend paid by the Company since 30 June 2007 was as follows:

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2007:

First and final dividend of 2.0 sen tax exempt and �.5 sen less 26% income tax on 80,000,000 
ordinary shares, paid on 23 January 2008

at the forthcoming annual General Meeting, a single tier first and final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2008 of 3.5 sen 
on 80,000,000 ordinary shares amounting to rM2,800,000 will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. the financial statements for the current 
financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an 
appropriation of unappropriated profit in the financial year ending 30 June 2009.

DIreCtorS’ report

RM

2,488,000
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DIreCtorS’ report (continued)

dIReCtORS

the names of the Directors of the Company in office since the date of last report and at the date of this report are:

Mohd Shafek Bin Isa 
tong Chin hen 
tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi 
Dr. leong wan leong 
tai keat Chai 

In accordance with article 75 of the Company’s articles of association, Mohd Shafek Bin Isa and tai keat Chai shall retire at the forthcoming 
annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

dIReCtORS’ BenefItS

neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that financial year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the Company was 
a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body 
corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit, (other than benefits included in the 
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the Directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company as 
shown in the notes to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with 
a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, except for as disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements.

 
dIReCtORS’ InteReStS

according to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, the interests of Directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares in the Company 
and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows:

Shareholdings in the name of the director:
Mohd Shafek Bin Isa
tong Chin hen
tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi
Dr. leong wan leong
tai keat Chai

Shareholdings in which the director is deemed to have an interest:
Mohd Shafek Bin Isa
tong Chin hen
tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi

notes: 
* Deemed interest by virtue of interest in Sunbina Dunia Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 6a of the Companies act, �965
** Deemed interest by virtue of interest in Swiss revenue Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 6a of the Companies act, �965
# transfer of shares from his wife, Fang lie lie’s direct interest in the Company

number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the Company
At

1.7.2007

�50,000
�50,000
�00,000

50,000
50,000

�9,��8,704
33,947,064

2,57�,498

Acquired

-
-

2,57�,498
-
-

-
-
-

disposed

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

2,57�,498 

At
30.6.2008

�50,000
�50,000

2,67�,498
50,000
50,000

�9,��8,704 
33,947,064 

-

*
**

#

#
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ISSue Of ShAReS

there were no changes in the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

 
OtheR StAtutORY InfORMAtIOn

(a) Before the income statements and balance sheets of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts 
and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting records in the ordinary course of 
business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

(b) at the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:

(i) it necessary to write off any bad debts or the amount of allowance for doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial extent; and

(ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

(c) at the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing 
method of valuation of assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d) at the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of 
the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

(e) as at the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures the liabilities 
of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year, except for as disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements.

(f ) In the opinion of the Directors:

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the 
end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall 
due; and

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the 
date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for the financial 
year in which this report is made.

DIreCtorS’ report (continued)
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AudItORS

the auditors, roger Yue, tan & associates have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors

tOng ChIn hen      MOhd ShAfek BIn ISA
Director       Director

petaling Jaya

Date  :  8 September 2008

DIreCtorS’ report (continued)
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PuRSuAnt tO SeCtIOn 169(15) Of the COMPAnIeS ACt, 1965

we, the undersigned, being two of the Directors of IMaSpro CorporatIon BerhaD do hereby state on behalf of the Directors that in our opinion, 
the accompanying financial statements together with the notes thereon, are drawn up in accordance with MaSB approved accounting Standards 
for entities other than private entities and the Companies act, �965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group 
and of the Company as at 30 June 2008 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors

tOng ChIn hen      MOhd ShAfek BIn ISA
Director       Director

petaling Jaya

Date   :  8 September 2008

StatutorY DeClaratIon

PuRSuAnt tO SeCtIOn 169(16) Of the COMPAnIeS ACt, 1965

I, tonG ChIn hen, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of IMaSpro CorporatIon BerhaD do solemnly and 
sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements together with the notes thereon, are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn 
declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations act, �960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared )

by the abovenamed at petaling Jaya )
        Before me
in Selangor Darul ehsan  )

on 8 September 2008  )
         Commissioner for Oaths

         S. Selvarajah
         petaling Jaya
         Selangor Darul ehsan

StateMent BY DIreCtorS
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Report on the financial Statements 

we have audited the financial statements of IMaSpro CorporatIon BerhaD, which comprise the balance sheets as at 30 June 2008 of the Group 
and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity and cash flow statements of the Group and of the Company 
for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out.

Directors’ responsibility for the Financial Statements

the Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with MaSB 
approved accounting Standards for entities other than private entities and the Companies act, �965 in Malaysia. this responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

auditors’ responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with approved 
standards on auditing in Malaysia. those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  the procedures 
selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with MaSB approved accounting Standards for entities 
other than private entities and the Companies act, �965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and 
of the Company as at 30 June 2008 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies act, �965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the act to be kept by the Company and its subsidiary companies 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the act.

b) we are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial statements are in 
form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received 
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

c) our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiary companies did not contain any qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 
�74(3) of the act.

InDepenDent auDItorS’ report
to the MeMBerS oF IMaSpro CorporatIon BerhaD
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Other Matters

this report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section �74 of the Companies act, �965 in Malaysia 
and for no other purpose. we do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

ROgeR Yue, tAn & ASSOCIAteS    ROgeR Yue SAu YIn
aF  :  0�34      M.B.a., C.a. (M), F.C.a.
Chartered accountants     partner of Firm
        838/3/�0 (J)

petaling Jaya

Date :  8 September 2008 

InDepenDent auDItorS’ report (continued)

to the MeMBerS oF IMaSpro CorporatIon BerhaD
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the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

ASSetS
non – current assets
property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
prepaid lease payments
Investment in subsidiary companies

Current assets
Inventories
trade receivables 
other receivables
amount due from subsidiary companies
Short term investment
Cash and bank balances
tax recoverable

tOtAl ASSetS

eQuItY And lIABIlItIeS
equity attributable to equity holders of the 
 Company
Share capital
Share premium
unappropriated profit
total equity

non – current liability
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Borrowings – secured
trade payables
other payables
tax payable

total liabilities

tOtAl eQuItY And lIABIlItIeS

2008
RM

-
-
-

3�,467,6�9
3�,467,6�9

-
-

�8,750
��,045,722

3,460,933
6,600

55,000
�4,587,005

46,054,624

40,000,000
2,857,032
3,�65,352

46,022,384

-

-
-

32,240
-

32,240

32,240

46,054,624

 
2007

RM

-
-
-

3�,467,6�9
3�,467,6�9

-
-
-

6,982,750
6,952,8�0

�6,7�7
32,250

�3,984,527

45,452,�46

40,000,000
2,857,032
2,58�,434

45,438,466

-

-
-

�3,680
-

�3,680

�3,680

45,452,�46

Company

2008
RM

�7,344,486
�57,633

3,�82,0�9
-

20,684,�38

20,296,547
48,930,8�6

�,4�0,�30
-

9,862,872
3,342,567

�0�,363
83,944,295

�04,628,433

40,000,000
2,857,032

39,328,380
82,�85,4�2

�,033,2�8

838,097
�6,298,662

3,3�4,7��
958,333

2�,409,803

22,443,02�

�04,628,433

Restated
2007

RM

�2,207,�4�
256,358

�,2�9,936
-

�3,683,435

�0,439,307
33,808,750

4,0�0,789
-

9,274,366
6,49�,322

955,000
64,979,534

78,662,969

40,000,000
2,857,032

25,493,989
68,35�,02�

749,649

70�,844
7,059,772
�,795,220

5,463
9,562,299

�0,3��,948

78,662,969

group

note

4
5
6
7

8
9

�0
��
�2
�3

�4

�5

�6

�7
�8
�9

BalanCe SheetS as at 30 June 2008
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the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Continuing Operations
revenue
Cost of sales
gross profit

other operating income
Distribution cost
administration expenses
other operating expenses
Operating profit

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year 

attributable to:
equity holders of the Company
Minority interest

earnings per share 
Basic (sen)

2008
RM

4,500,000
-

4,500,000

34,594
-

(282,926)
-

4,25�,668

-

4,25�,668

(�,�79,750)

3,07�,9�8

3,07�,9�8
-

3,07�,9�8

2007
RM

2,275,000
-

2,275,000

275,893
-

(240,687)
-

2,3�0,206

-

2,3�0,206

(�94,847)

2,��5,359

2,��5,359
-

2,��5,359

Company
2008

RM

�50,678,784
(�2�,770,695)

28,908,089

649,987
(2�5,076)

(6,722,495)
(80�,545)

2�,8�8,960

(�30,099)

2�,688,86�

(5,366,470)

�6,322,39�

�6,322,39�
-

�6,322,39�

20.40

2007
RM

85,926,442
(68,394,8�9)
�7,53�,623

82�,263
(�56,��3)

(4,300,965)
(885,389)

�3,0�0,4�9

(75,37�)

�2,935,048

(2,060,486)

�0,874,562

�0,874,562
-

�0,874,562

�3.59

group

note

20

2�

22

23

26

27

InCoMe StateMentS 
For the Year enDeD 30 June 2008
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StateMentS oF ChanGeS In eQuItY
For the Year enDeD 30 June 2008

group

At 1 July 2006

profit for the year

Dividends

At 30 June 2007

At 1 July 2007

profit for the year

Dividends

At 30 June 2008

distributable
unappropriated

Profit
RM

�6,859,427

�0,874,562

(2,240,000)

25,493,989

25,493,989

�6,322,39�

(2,488,000)

39,328,380

total
RM

59,7�6,459

�0,874,562

(2,240,000)

68,35�,02�

68,35�,02�

�6,322,39�

(2,488,000)

82,�85,4�2

Share
Capital

RM

40,000,000

-

-

40,000,000

40,000,000

-

-

40,000,000

non - 
distributable

Share
Premium

RM

2,857,032

-

-

2,857,032

2,857,032

-

-

2,857,032

<------ Attributable to equity holders of the Company ----->

note

28

28

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Company

At 1 July 2006

profit for the year

Dividends

At 30 June 2007

At 1 July 2007

profit for the year

Dividends

At 30 June 2008

2,706,075

2,��5,359

(2,240,000)

2,58�,434

2,58�,434

3,07�,9�8

(2,488,000)

3,�65,352

45,563,�07

2,��5,359

(2,240,000)

45,438,466

45,438,466

3,07�,9�8

(2,488,000)

46,022,384

 
40,000,000

-

-

40,000,000

40,000,000

-

-

40,000,000

 

2,857,032

-

-

2,857,032

2,857,032

-

-

2,857,032

 

28

28
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CASh flOWS fROM OPeRAtIng ACtIVItIeS
profit before tax
adjustments for:
 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 Interest expenses
 Interest income
 Gain on foreign exchange - unrealised
 allowance for doubtful debts 
 allowance for doubtful debts no longer required
 Depreciation for property, plant and equipment
 Depreciation for investment properties
 amortisation of prepaid lease payments
 property, plant and equipment written off
 Dividend income
 
operatInG proFIt/(loSS) BeFore workInG   
 CapItal ChanGeS
 Increase in inventories
 Increase in receivables
 Increase in payables
 
CaSh GenerateD FroM/(DepleteD In) operatIonS
 Interest paid
 Interest received
 taxes paid
 
net CaSh GenerateD FroM/(uSeD In) operatInG  
 aCtIVItIeS

CASh flOWS fROM InVeStIng ACtIVItIeS
 prepayment of land lease (note 6)
 purchase of property, plant and equipment
 proceeds from disposal of property, plant 
    and equipment
 advances to subsidiary companies
 Dividends received

net CaSh (uSeD In) / GenerateD FroM  
 InVeStInG aCtIVItIeS

2008
RM

4,25�,668

-
-

(34,594)
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(4,500,000)

(282,926)
-

(�8,750)
�8,560

(283,��6)
-

34,594
(32,500)

(28�,022)

-
-

-
(6,�55,722)
5,422,750

(732,972)

 
2007

RM

2,3�0,206

-
-

(275,893)
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(2,275,000)

(240,687)
-
-

7,�45

(233,542)
-

275,893
(39,847)

2,504

-
-

-
(2,490,000)
2,672,000

�82,000

Company

2008
RM

2�,688,86�

(29,796)
�30,099

(234,�89)
(76,087)

324,482
(29,739)

�,26�,093
2,59�

40,2�8
�3,773

-

23,09�,306
(9,857,240)

(�2,448,740)
�0,485,445

��,270,77�
(�30,099)
234,�89

(3,276,393)

8,098,468

(2,002,30�)
(6,3�6,08�)

29,800
-
-

(8,288,582)

Restated
2007

RM

�2,935,048

(�2,596)
75,37�

(503,365)
(53,296)

�42,968
(�88,406)
939,078

4,�45
�5,836

-
-

�3,354,783
(�,�32,950)
(3,458,422)

734,0�5

9,497,426
(75,37�)

503,365
(4,023,404)

5,902,0�6

-
(3,955,��5)

�2,600
-
-

(3,942,5�5)

group

CaSh Flow StateMentS
For the Year enDeD 30 June 2008

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



��AnnuAl RePORt 2008

CASh flOWS fROM fInAnCIng ACtIVItIeS
 repayment of term loan
 net proceeds of bills payable
 Dividends paid

net CaSh uSeD In FInanCInG aCtIVItIeS

net deCReASe In CASh And CASh eQuIVAlentS

eFFeCt oF ForeIGn exChanGe rate ChanGeS

CaSh anD CaSh eQuIValentS at BeGInnInG oF 
 Year

CASh And CASh eQuIVAlentS At end Of 
 YeAR (nOte 13)

2008
RM

-
-

(2,488,000)

(2,488,000)

(3,50�,994)

-

6,969,527

3,467,533

 
2007

RM

-
-

(2,240,000)

(2,240,000)

(2,055,496)

-

9,025,023

6,969,527

Company

2008
RM

(�34,�3�)
238,33�

(2,488,000)

(2,383,800)

(2,573,9�4)

�3,665

�5,765,688

�3,205,439

Restated
2007

RM

(259,0�3)
(200,954)

(2,240,000)

(2,699,967)

(740,466)

42,93�

�6,463,223

�5,765,688

group

CaSh Flow StateMentS (continued)
For the Year enDeD 30 June 2008

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



�� IMASPRO CORPORAtIOn BeRhAd (657527-h)

1. CORPORAte InfORMAtIOn

the principal activity of the Company is investment holding. the principal activities of the subsidiary companies are set out in note 7 to the 
financial statements. there were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

the Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Second Board of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

the registered office of the Company is located at wisma Goshen, 2nd Floor, 60 & 62 Jalan SS 22/2�, Damansara Jaya, 47400 petaling Jaya, 
Selangor Darul ehsan and the principal place of business of the Company is located at 37 Jalan 5, kawasan �6, taman Intan, 4�300 klang, 
Selangor Darul ehsan.

the financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 8 September 
2008.

2.  BASIS Of PRePARAtIOn

(a) Statement of Compliance

the financial statements comply with MaSB approved accounting Standards for entities other than private entities and the Companies 
act, �965 in Malaysia.

the following Financial reporting Standards (FrSs) and amendments to FrSs are effective and applicable for accounting periods beginning 
on or after � July 2007:

 fRSs / Amendments to fRSs effective date
  

i) FrS ��7, leases � october 2006
  
ii) FrS �24, related party Disclosures � october 2006
 FrS �24 has been early adopted by the Group in the previous financial year ended 30 June 2007. 

iii) FrS �07, Cash Flow Statements  � July 2007
 this revised standard has no significant changes as compared to the original standard. 
  
iv) FrS ��2, Income taxes  � July 2007
 the revised standard removes the requirements that prohibit recognition of deferred tax on unutilised 

reinvestment allowances or other allowances in excess of capital allowances.  there is no significant impact to 
the financial statements of the Group upon initial application of this revised standard. 

v) FrS ��8, revenue � July 2007
 this revised standard has no significant changes as compared to the original standard. 
  
vi) FrS �34, Interim Financial reporting  � July 2007
 this revised standard has no significant changes as compared to the original standard. 
  
vii) FrS �37, provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets  � July 2007
 this revised standard has no significant changes as compared to the original standard. 

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS
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2. BASIS Of PRePARAtIOn (continued)

(a) Statement of Compliance (continued)

 the principal changes in accounting policies and their effects resulting from the adoption of FrS ��7, leases are disclosed in note 33.

at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FrS was issued and applicable to the Group and the Company but 
not yet effective and has not been early adopted by the Group and the Company:

FrS �39, Financial Instruments: recognition and Measurement (effective date yet to be determined by MaSB).  the Group will apply this 
standard when effective.  the Group has applied the transitional provision in FrS �39 which exempts entities from disclosing the possible 
impact arising from the initial application of this standard on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company.

the following FrSs, amendments to FrSs and Interpretations were issued and effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after � 
July 2007 but not relevant to the Group and the Company are as follows:

 fRSs / Amendments to fRSs / Interpretations effective date
  
i) FrS 6, exploration for and evaluation of Mineral resources � January 2007
  
ii) amendment to FrS ��92004, employees Benefits: actuarial Gains and losses, Group plans and Disclosures � January 2007
  
iii) amendment to FrS �2�, the effects of Changes in Foreign exchange rates – net Investment in a Foreign � July 2007
 operation 
  
iv) FrS ���, Construction Contracts � July 2007
  
v) FrS �20, accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government assistance � July 2007
  
vi) IC Interpretation �, Changes in existing Decommissioning, restoration and Similar liabilities � July 2007
  
vii) IC Interpretation 2, Members’ Shares in Co-operative entities and Similar Instruments � July 2007
  
viii) IC Interpretation 5, rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, restoration and  � July 2007
 environmental rehabilitation Funds 
  
ix) IC Interpretation 6, liabilities arising from participating in a Specific Market – waste electrical and � July 2007
 electronic equipment 
  
x) IC Interpretation 7, applying the restatement approach under FrS �292004 Financial reporting in � July 2007
 hyperinflationary economies 
  
xi) IC Interpretation 8, Scope of FrS 2 � July 2007
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2. BASIS Of PRePARAtIOn (continued)

(b) Basis of Measurement

the financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for those indicated 
in the individual policy notes.

(c) functional and Presentation Currency

 the financial statements are presented in ringgit Malaysia (rM), which is the Group’s functional currency.  

(d) use of estimates and Judgements

the preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  actual results may differ from these estimates.

estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

(i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

 property, plant and equipment and investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful life.  the Group will 
periodically review the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment and investment properties in accordance with 
the accounting policies. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments may impact the economic useful life 
and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges may be revised.

(ii) allowance for doubtful debts

 the Group made allowance for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.  allowances are applied to 
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.  the management 
specifically analysed historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes 
in customer payment terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts of receivables.  
where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of receivables.

(iii) Income taxes

 Significant estimation is involved in determining the Group provision for income tax. there are certain transactions and computations 
for which the ultimate tax determination may be different from the initial estimates. the Group recognised tax liabilities based on their 
understanding of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business.  where the 
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially recognised, the difference will impact the tax provision in the 
period in which the outcome is determined.
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3. SIgnIfICAnt ACCOuntIng POlICIeS

(a) Subsidiary Companies and Basis of Consolidation

(i) Subsidiary companies

 Subsidiary companies are entities over which the Group has the ability to control the financial and operating policies so as to obtain 
benefits from their activities.  the existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered 
when assessing whether the Group has such power over another entity.

 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost less impairment losses.  on 
disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss.

(ii) Basis of consolidation

 the consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies as at the balance 
sheet date. the financial statements of the subsidiary companies are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company.

 Subsidiary companies are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue 
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.  In preparing the consolidated financial statements, intragroup balances, 
transactions and unrealised gains or losses are eliminated in full.  uniform accounting policies are adopted in the consolidated financial 
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

 acquisitions of subsidiary companies are accounted for using the purchase method.  the purchase method of accounting involves 
allocating the cost of the acquisition to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date 
of acquisition.  the cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given, 
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus any costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

 any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities represents goodwill.  Goodwill on consolidation is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

 any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the 
acquisition represents negative goodwill which is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiary companies not held by the Group.  It is measured 
at the minorities’ share of the fair value of the subsidiary companies’ identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date and the 
minorities’ share of changes in the subsidiary companies’ equity since then.

 
(b) Property, Plant and equipment and depreciation 

all items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.  all other repairs 
and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses.
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3. SIgnIfICAnt ACCOuntIng POlICIeS (continued)

(b) Property, Plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. long term leasehold land and building are depreciated over its 
lease periods range from 79 years to 82 years. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to 
write off the cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the following annual rates: 

Buildings   2%
office equipment  20%
Furniture and fittings  �0% - �5%
renovation 25%
Motor vehicles 20%
plant and machinery �0%

the residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to ensure that the amount, method and 
period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits 
embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal.  the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any and the net carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. 

(c) Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.  Such properties are 
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties will continue to be measured 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Investment properties carried at cost are depreciated over the 
estimated economic useful life of 50 years.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed or when the investment properties are permanently withdrawn 
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.  any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property is recognised in profit or loss in the year in which it arises.

(d) Prepaid lease Payments

leasehold land that normally has a finite useful life and title is not expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the lease term is treated as an 
operating lease.  the payments made on entering into or acquiring leasehold land is accounted as prepaid lease payments.

the Group has previously classified leases of land as finance lease and had recognised the amount of prepaid lease payments as property 
within its property, plant and equipment.  upon adoption of FrS ��7, leases, the unamortised carrying amount of the leasehold land is 
classified as prepaid lease payments as allowed by the transitional provisions of FrS ��7.

prepaid lease payments are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SIgnIfICAnt ACCOuntIng POlICIeS (continued)

(e) Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, packaging materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average method.  the costs of raw materials and packaging materials comprise the original cost of 
purchase plus the cost of bringing the inventories to their present location.  the costs of finished goods and work-in-progress comprise cost 
of raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and appropriate production overheads.

net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale.

(f) financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has become a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends 
and gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability, are reported as expense or income.  Distributions to holders 
of financial instruments classified as equity are recognised directly in equity.  Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally 
enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, deposit at call and short 
term highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(ii) trade receivables

 trade receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written off when identified.  an estimate is made for doubtful 
debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the balance sheet date.

(iii) trade payables

 trade payables are stated at the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received.

(iv) Interest-bearing borrowings

 all borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.  after 
initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(v) equity instruments

 ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are 
declared. 

 the transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of tax.  equity transaction costs comprise 
only those incremental external costs directly attributable to the equity transaction which would otherwise have been avoided.
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3. SIgnIfICAnt ACCOuntIng POlICIeS (continued)

(g) Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income 
taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the balance 
sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method.  In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax 
credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense 
and included in the profit or loss for the period, except when it arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity, in which case 
the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity.

(h) Borrowing Costs

 all borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(i) employee Benefits

(i) Short term benefits

 wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the financial year in which the associated 
services are rendered by employees. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when 
services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term non-accumulating 
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

 Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into separate entities or 
funds and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay 
all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years.  Such contributions are recognised as 
an expense in the profit and loss as incurred.  as required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the employees provident 
Fund (“epF”).
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3. SIgnIfICAnt ACCOuntIng POlICIeS (continued)

(j) Revenue Recognition 

revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured.  the following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Sale of goods

 revenue relating to sale of goods is recognised net of discounts, if any and upon the transfer of risks and rewards of the ownership to 
the buyer.  revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration 
due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(ii) Interest income

 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method unless collectibility is in doubt, in which case it is 
recognised on a receipt basis.

(iii) rental income

 rental income from investment properties is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  the aggregate cost of 
incentives provided to lessees is recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(k) foreign Currencies

(i) Functional and presentation currency

 the individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).  the consolidated financial statements are presented in ringgit Malaysia (rM), 
which is also the Group’s functional currency.

(ii) Foreign currency transactions

 In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency 
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions.  at each 
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.  
non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.  

 exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items, are included in profit or 
loss for the period.

 
(l) Provisions

provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount 
can be made.  where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when 
the reimbursement is virtually certain.  provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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3. SIgnIfICAnt ACCOuntIng POlICIeS (continued)

(m) Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

the Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.  a contingent liability is a possible 
obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation.  a contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a liability that 
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

a contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group.  the Group does not recognise contingent assets but discloses its 
existence where inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.

(n) Impairment of Assets 

the carrying amounts of assets other than inventories are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the amount of impairment loss. 

For the purpose of impairment testing of these assets, recoverable amount is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does 
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.  If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the 
cash-generating unit (CGu) to which the asset belongs to.

an asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGu’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGu or groups of 
CGus are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit or groups of units on pro-rata basis.

an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

an impairment loss for an asset is reversed only when there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. the carrying amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, 
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. a reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in profit or loss.

(o) Segment Reporting

a segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business segment), or in 
providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that 
are different from those of other segments.
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4. PROPeRtY, PlAnt And eQuIPMent (continued)

 Buildings with an aggregate carrying value of nil (2007: rM2,�65,50�) was pledged as security for borrowings as at 30 June 2008.

5. InVeStMent PROPeRtIeS

Cost
at � July
transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 4)

at 30 June 

Accumulated depreciation
at � July 
Depreciation charge for the year
transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 4)

at 30 June

net carrying amount
at 30 June

In year 2008, the fair values on the above investment properties stated at cost approximated rM650,000 (2007: rM�,040,000). these fair 
values were obtained based on Directors’ informal enquiries made with registered valuers.

Investment properties comprise freehold land and buildings.  there were no direct operating expenses incurred for the investment properties 
during the financial year.

6. PRePAId leASe PAYMentS

at � July (note 33)
additions 
amortisation for the year (note 23)

at 30 June

analysed as:
long term leasehold land with unexpired lease period of more than 50 years

prepaid lease payments with an aggregate carrying value of nil (2007: rM�,2�9,936) were pledged as security for borrowings as at 30 June 
2008.

2008
RM

293,666
(��0,�25)

�83,54�

37,308
2,59�

(�3,99�)

25,908

�57,633

2007
RM

293,666
-

293,666

33,�63
4,�45

-

37,308

256,358

group

2008
RM

�,2�9,936
2,002,30�

(40,2�8)

3,�82,0�9

3,�82,0�9

2007
RM

�,235,772
-

(�5,836)

�,2�9,936

�,2�9,936

group

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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7. InVeStMent In SuBSIdIARY COMPAnIeS

unquoted shares – at cost

the details of the subsidiary companies, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia are as follows:-

name of Subsidiary Companies

direct subsidiaries of Imaspro Corporation Berhad
Imaspro resources Sdn. Bhd. 

Ideal Command Sdn. Bhd. 

direct subsidiary of Imaspro Resources Sdn. Bhd.
Imaspro Biotech Sdn. Bhd. 

all of the subsidiary companies are audited by roger Yue, tan & associates

8. InVentORIeS

At cost:
raw materials
Finished goods
packaging materials
work-in-progress

2008
RM

�2,056,959
6,580,965

9�8,8�4
739,809

20,296,547

2007
RM

6,556,533
2,9�9,625

7�0,225
252,924

�0,439,307

group

2008
RM

3�,467,6�9

2007
RM

3�,467,6�9

Company

effective Ownership Interest
 2008 2007
 (%) (%)
 
 
 �00 �00
 

 �00 �00
 
 
 �00 �00

Principal Activities

Manufacturing of pesticides and plant 
micronutrients, distribution and agency of 
pesticides and other agrochemicals, and trading 
of pesticides and other agrochemicals

Investment holding 

Manufacturing,  distr ibution,  research 
and development  of  pest ic ides  and 
agrochemicals

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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9. tRAde ReCeIVABleS

trade receivables
less : allowance for doubtful debts 

the Group’s normal trade credit terms ranges from 30 days to 270 days. other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case by case 
basis.

the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to a single debtor or to groups of debtors.

10. OtheR ReCeIVABleS

Deposits
prepayments
Sundry receivables

the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to a single debtor or to groups of debtors.

11. AMOunt due fROM SuBSIdIARY COMPAnIeS

these are unsecured, interest free and there is no fixed term of repayment.

12. ShORt teRM InVeStMent

the amount represents investment in short-term fixed income unit trust fund which provides a stream of monthly income by investing in 
money market and fixed income instruments. Interest received from the investment is exempted from tax.

Short term investment is highly liquid which have an insignificant risk of changes in value which bore weighted average effective interest 
rates at the balance sheet date of 2.42% and 2.42% (2007: 2.78% and 2.85%) for the Group and the Company respectively.

2008
RM

49,699,605
(768,789)

48,930,8�6

2007
RM

34,282,796
(474,046)

33,808,750

group

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)

2008
RM

-
�8,750

-

�8,750

2007
RM

-
-
-

-

Company
2008

RM

46,370
�,363,279

48�

�,4�0,�30

2007
RM

585,570
3,425,2�9

-

4,0�0,789

group
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13. CASh And CASh eQuIVAlentS

Cash on hand and at banks
Deposits with licensed banks

Cash and bank balances

Short term investment (note �2)

Cash and cash equivalents

one of the deposits with licensed banks in respect of a subsidiary company amounting to rM��,000 (2007: rM��,000) is held under lien with 
a licensed bank as security for a bank guarantee issued in favour of tenaga nasional Berhad.

the weighted average effective interest rates of deposits with licensed banks at the balance sheet date were as follows:

licensed banks

the average maturities of deposits with licensed banks as at the end of the financial year were as follows:

licensed banks

14. ShARe CAPItAl

Authorised: 
at � July/30 June
 
Issued and fully paid:
at � July/30 June

the holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at 
meetings of the Company.  all ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

2008
RM

6,600
-

6,600

3,460,933

3,467,533

2007
RM

�6,7�7
-

�6,7�7

6,952,8�0

6,969,527

Company
2008

RM

3,33�,567
��,000

3,342,567

9,862,872

�3,205,439

2007
RM

4,480,322
2,0��,000

6,49�,322

9,274,366

�5,765,688

group

2008
%

-

2007
%

-

Company
2008

%

3.70

2007
%

2.6�

group

2008
days

-

2007
days

-

Company
2008
days

365

2007
days

�4

group

2008
RM

�00,000,000

40,000,000

2007
RM

�00,000,000

40,000,000

Amount
2008

200,000,000

80,000,000

2007

200,000,000

80,000,000

number of Ordinary Shares 
of RM0.50 each

group and Company

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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15. unAPPROPRIAted PROfIt

the Malaysian Budget 2008 introduced a single tier company income tax which is effective from � January 2008. under this single tier, tax 
on a Company’s profit is a final tax, and dividends distributed to shareholders will be exempted from tax. Companies with credit balance 
in Section �08 account will be given an irrevocable option to elect for single tier tax system. as such, the Section �08 tax credit as at 3� 
December 2007 will be available to the Company until such time the credit is fully utilised or upon expiry of the six-year transition period on 
3� December 20�3, whichever is earlier.

the Company has made an irrevocable election to move to a single tier system to frank tax exempt dividend up to maximum amount 
of unappropriated profit. as a result, there are no longer restrictions on the Company to frank the payment of dividends out of its entire 
unappropriated profit as at the balance sheet date.

16. defeRRed tAX lIABIlItIeS

at � July
recognised in income statement (note 26)

at 30 June

presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:
   
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities 

the components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year prior to offsetting are as follows:

deferred tax assets of the group

at � July 2007
recognised in income statement 

at 30 June 2008

at � July 2006
recognised in income statement 

at 30 June 2007

2008
RM

749,649
283,569

�,033,2�8

(85,986)
�,��9,204

�,033,2�8

2007
RM

73�,230
�8,4�9

749,649

(��,739)
76�,388

749,649

group

total
RM

(��,739)
(74,247)

(85,986)

-
(��,739)

(��,739)

Property, plant 
and equipment

RM

-
(989)

(989)

-
-

-

Payables
RM

(��,739)
(73,258)

(84,997)

-
(��,739)

(��,739)

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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16. defeRRed tAX lIABIlItIeS (continued)

deferred tax liabilities of the group

at � July 2007
recognised in income statement 

at 30 June 2008

at � July 2006
recognised in income statement 

at 30 June 2007

17. BORROWIngS - secured

term loan 
Bills payable

repayable:
within one year
More than � year and less than 2 years

analysed as:
under current liabilities
under non-current liabilities

the weighted average effective interest rate of term loan as at the balance sheet date were nil (2007: 8.25%) per annum.  the term loan was 
fully settled during the financial year.

Commission on bills payable drawdown was charged at 0.�0% flat, subject to minimum charge of rM30 per bill and bills payable are repayable 
from �20 days to �80 days.

the bills payable are secured by the following:

(i) General Security agreement relating to Goods;
(ii) letter of pledge; and
(iii) Corporate guarantee by the Company.

total
RM

76�,388
357,8�6

�,��9,204

73�,230
30,�58

76�,388

Property, plant 
and equipment

RM

746,954
268,23�

�,0�5,�85

73�,230
�5,724

746,954

Payables
RM

�4,434
89,585

�04,0�9

-
�4,434

�4,434

2008
RM

-
838,097

838,097

838,097
-

838,097

838,097
-

838,097

2007
RM

�34,�3�
567,7�3

70�,844

70�,844
-

70�,844

70�,844
-

70�,844

group

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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18. tRAde PAYABleS

trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases. the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group ranges from 30 
days to 90 days.

19. OtheR PAYABleS

Deposits received
accruals
Sundry payables

20. ReVenue

Sale of goods
Dividend income

21. OtheR OPeRAtIng InCOMe

allowance for doubtful debts no longer required
Interest income
rental income
Insurance claim
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on foreign exchange 
- realised
- unrealised

2008
RM

-
�7,200
�5,040

32,240

2008
RM

-
4,500,000

4,500,000

2007
RM

-
5,000
8,680

�3,680

2007
RM

-
2,275,000

2,275,000

Company

Company

2008
RM

�4,500
3,�4�,870

�58,34�

3,3�4,7��

2008
RM

�50,678,784
-

�50,678,784

2007
RM

20,700
544,36�

�,230,�59

�,795,220

2007
RM

85,926,442
-

85,926,442

group

group

2008
RM

-
34,594

-
-
-

-
-

34,594

2007
RM

-
275,893

-
-
-

-
-

275,893

Company
2008

RM

29,739
234,�89

30,600
66,728
29,796

�82,848
76,087

649,987

2007
RM

�88,406
503,365

63,600
-

�2,596

-
53,296

82�,263

group

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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22. fInAnCe COStS

Interest expenses on:
term loan
Bills payable

23. PROfIt BefORe tAX

the following amounts have been included in arriving at profit before tax:

employee benefits expense (note 24)
non-executive Directors’ remuneration (note 25)
auditors’ remuneration
- statutory audit
- other services
loss on foreign exchange - realised
allowance for doubtful debts
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 4)
Depreciation of investment properties (note 5)
amortisation of prepaid lease payments (note 6)
property, plant and equipment written off
Factory rental

24. eMPlOYee BenefItS eXPenSe

wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances
Social security contribution
Contribution to defined contribution plan

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive Directors’ remuneration amounting to rM�,783,900 
(2007: rM�,008,000) and rM48,000 (2007: rM48,000) respectively as further disclosed in note 25.

2008
RM

3,078
�27,02�

�30,099

2007
RM

22,83�
52,540

75,37�

group

2008
RM

48,000
84,000

�7,200
�4,�00

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

2007
RM

48,000
84,000

5,000
�3,500

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Company
2008

RM

4,4�6,823
84,000

38,200
�4,600

-
324,482

�,26�,093
2,59�

40,2�8
�3,773

-

2007
RM

2,847,544
84,000

2�,700
�3,500

32�,573
�42,968
939,078

4,�45
�5,836

-
8,800

group

2008
RM

48,000
-
-

48,000

2007
RM

48,000
-
-

48,000

Company
2008

RM

4,04�,5��
�9,899

355,4�3

4,4�6,823

2007
RM

2,598,890
�6,659

23�,995

2,847,544

group

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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25. dIReCtORS’ ReMuneRAtIOn

executive:
- Salaries and other emoluments
- Fees
- Contribution to defined contribution plan

non-executive:
- Fees

total

26. InCOMe tAX eXPenSe

Income tax:
Malaysian income tax
underprovided in prior year

Deferred tax (note �6):
relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 
effect to changes in tax rate
over/(under)provided in prior year

total

Domestic current income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 26% (2007: 27%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. the 
domestic statutory tax rate will be reduced to 25% from the current year’s rate of 26% effective year of assessment 2009. the computation 
of deferred tax as at 30 June 2008 has reflected these changes.

taxation for small and medium scale subsidiary company with paid-up share capital of rM2,500,000 and below is calculated at the rate of 
20% (2007: 20%) on chargeable income up to rM500,000 (2007: rM500,000). For chargeable income in excess rM500,000, the statutory tax 
rate of 26% (2007: 27%) is applicable.

2008
RM

-
48,000

-

48,000

84,000

�32,000

2008
RM

(�,�40,000)
(39,750)

(�,�79,750)

-
-
-

-

(�,�79,750)

2007
RM

-
48,000

-

48,000

84,000

�32,000

2007
RM

(�75,000)
(�9,847)

(�94,847)

-
-
-

-

(�94,847)

Company

Company

2008
RM

�,420,000
�68,000
�95,900

�,783,900

84,000

�,867,900

2008
RM

(5,0�8,290)
(64,6��)

(5,082,90�)

(333,238)
4�,329

8,340

(283,569)

(5,366,470)

2007
RM

750,000
�68,000

90,000

�,008,000

84,000

�,092,000

2007
RM

(2,0�6,000)
(26,067)

(2,042,067)

(67,983)
55,�49
(5,585)

(�8,4�9)

(2,060,486)

group

group
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26. InCOMe tAX eXPenSe (continued)

a reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective 
income tax rate of the Group and of the Company are as follows: 

profit before tax

taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 26% (2007: 27%) 
tax benefits for small and medium companies in Malaysia
effect of changes in tax rates on opening balance of deferred 

tax
Deferred tax recognised at different tax rates
expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Income not subject to tax 
expenditure qualified for double deduction
utilisation of reinvestment allowances
Deferred tax assets not recognised in respect of current year’s 

tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances
temporary differences in respect of property, plant and 

equipment not recognised
tax deduction granted on investment in subsidiary that 

undertakes the commercialisation of research and 
development findings

under provision of tax expense in prior year
over/(under) provision of deferred tax in prior year

tax expense for the year

27. eARnIngS PeR ShARe - gROuP 

(a) Basic

 Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company divided 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of rM0.50 each in issue during the financial year held by the Company.

 profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (rM)

 weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

 Basic earnings per share (sen)

(b) diluted

 no diluted earnings per share is presented as there are no diluted potential ordinary shares.

2008
RM

4,25�,668

(�,�05,434)
-

-
-

(34,566)
-
-
-

-

-

-
(39,750)

-

(�,�79,750)

2007
RM

2,3�0,206

(623,756)
-

-
-

(25,589)
474,345

-
-

-

-

-
(�9,847)

-

(�94,847)

Company
2008

RM

2�,688,86�

(5,639,�04)
4,003

28,5�2
�2,8�7

(�36,089)
33,007
92,787

3��,5��

(�38,080)

�20,437

-
(64,6��)

8,340

(5,366,470)

2007
RM

�2,935,048

(3,492,463)
�6,2�2

52,629
2,520

(�32,�50)
79,766
42,256
52,396

-

-

�,350,000
(26,067)

(5,585)

(2,060,486)

group

2008

�6,322,39�

80,000,000

20.40

2007

�0,874,562

80,000,000

�3.59

group
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28. dIVIdendS

for financial year ended 30 June 2008:
- 2.0 sen per share tax exempt on 80,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 23 January 2008
- �.5 sen per share less 26% income tax on 80,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 23 January 2008

for financial year ended 30 June 2007:
- �.0 sen per share tax exempt on 80,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 23 January 2007
- 2.5 sen per share less 28% income tax on 80,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 23 January 2007

at the forthcoming annual General Meeting, a single tier first and final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2008 of 3.5 
sen on 80,000,000 ordinary shares amounting to rM2,800,000 will be proposed for shareholders’ approval.  the financial statements for the 
current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend.  Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity 
as an appropriation of unappropriated profit in the financial year ending 30 June 2009.

29. SIgnIfICAnt RelAted PARtY tRAnSACtIOnS

(a) Significant transactions with related parties in the financial statements are as follow:

Dividends received/receivable from a subsidiary company 
- Imaspro resources Sdn. Bhd.

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 30 June 2008 is disclosed in note ��.

(b) transactions with other related parties

 Sales to hap Seng Chemicals Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as Dewana Sdn. Bhd.), a company 
in which the Director, tong Chin hen has equity interest via his shareholding in Imaspro 
process technology Sdn. Bhd.

 Sales to hap Seng Fertiliser Sdn. Bhd., a holding company of hap Seng Chemicals Sdn. 
Bhd.  

 Salaries and other related expenses paid/payable to persons related to certain Directors

 the Directors are of the opinion that all the transactions above have been entered into in the normal course of business and have been 
established on terms and conditions that are not materially different from those obtainable in transactions with unrelated parties.

 

2008
RM

33,550

         7,750

89,600

2007
RM

38,456

-

72,800

group

2008
RM

�,600,000
888,000

-
-

2,488,000

2007
RM

-
-

800,000
�,440,000

2,240,000

group and Company

2008
RM

4,500,000

2007
RM

2,275,000

Company
2008

RM

-

2007
RM

-

group
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29. SIgnIfICAnt RelAted PARtY tRAnSACtIOnS (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

 the remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the financial year are as follows:-

Short term employee benefits
post-employment benefits:
- Defined contribution plan

 other members of key management personnel comprise persons other than Directors of the Group, having authority and responsibility 
of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly.

Included in the total key management personnel are:

Directors’ remuneration (note 25)

30. CAPItAl COMMItMent

Capital expenditure   
approved and contracted for:
- property, plant and equipment 

31. COntIngent lIABIlItIeS

During the financial year, the Company is contingently liable for the following:

unsecured:
- Corporate guarantee given to a licensed bank for credit facilities granted to 
   a subsidiary company

2008
RM

�32,000

-

�32,000

2007
RM

�32,000

-

�32,000

Company
2008

RM

2,309,629

272,094

2,58�,723

2007
RM

�,443,360

�40,348

�,583,708

group

2008
RM

�32,000

2007
RM

�32,000

Company
2008

RM

�,867,900

2007
RM

�,092,000

group

2008
RM

4,850,000

2007
RM

4,850,000

Company

2008
RM

-

2007
RM

4,860,000

group
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32. SegMent InfORMAtIOn

(a) geographical Segments 

 the Group’s business segments operate substantially from Malaysia.  In determining the geographical segments of the Group, segment 
revenue is based on the geographical location of customers as listed below:

 Revenue (from external customers)
 Malaysia
 overseas countries

 there are no inter-segment revenues.  no segment results, assets and capital expenditure are presented as the Group does not have a 
legal presence in any other country other than Malaysia.

(b) Business Segments

 no business segment information has been presented as the Group is solely involved in the manufacturing of pesticides and plant 
micronutrients, distribution and agency of pesticides and other agrochemicals and trading of pesticides and other agrochemicals which 
are substantially within a single business segment.

2008
RM

55,565,955
95,��2,829

�50,678,784

2007
RM

48,2�3,9��
37,7�2,53�

85,926,442

group
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33. ChAngeS In ACCOuntIng POlICIeS And effeCtS ARISIng fROM AdOPtIOn Of neW And ReVISed fRSs

the adoption of the new and revised FrSs that are mandatory for financial period beginning on or after � July 2007 does not result in significant 
changes in accounting policies of the Group except as stated below:

FrS ��7, leases

prior to � July 2007, leasehold land was classified as property, plant and equipment and was stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses.  upon the adoption of the revised FrS ��7 on � July 2007, the unamortised carrying amount of the leasehold land is 
classified as prepaid lease payments as allowed by the transitional provisions of FrS ��7.  the adoption of the revised FrS ��7 has resulted 
in a retrospective change in the accounting policy relating to the classification of leasehold land.  the up-front payments made for the 
leasehold land represents prepaid lease payments and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  a lease of land and building 
is apportioned into a lease of land and a lease of building in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element 
and the building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

upon adoption of the revised FrS ��7 from � July 2007, the unamortised amount of leasehold land is retained as the surrogate carrying 
amount of prepaid lease payments as allowed by the transitional provisions.  the reclassification of leasehold land as prepaid lease payments 
has been accounted for retrospectively and the comparative figures of leasehold land being restated as follows:

group

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
As At 30 June 2007
property, plant and equipment
prepaid lease payments

Consolidated Income Statement
for the Year ended 30 June 2007
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
amortisation of prepaid lease payments 

As restated
RM

�2,207,�4�
�,2�9,936

-
�5,836

As previously 
stated

RM

�3,427,077
-

�5,836
-

effect on 
adoption of 

fRS 117
RM

(�,2�9,936)
�,2�9,936

(�5,836)
�5,836

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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34. fInAnCIAl InStRuMentS

(a) financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

 the Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are available for the development of 
the Group’s businesses whilst managing its interest rate, foreign currency, liquidity and credit risks. the Group operates within clearly 
defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to engage in speculative transactions.

(b) Interest Rate Risk

 the Group’s primary interest rate risk relates to interest-bearing debts; the Group had no substantial long term interest-bearing assets 
as at 30 June 2008.  the investments in financial assets are mainly short term in nature and have been mostly placed in fixed deposits 
or occasionally, in short term commercial papers.

 the Group manages its interest rate exposure by maintaining a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings and manages its interest rates 
risk by placing the financial assets on varying maturities and interest rate terms.  the Group reviews its debts portfolio, taking into 
account the investment holding period and nature of its assets.  this strategy allows it to capitalise on cheaper funding in a low interest 
rate environment and achieve a certain level of protection against rate hikes.

 the information on maturity dates and effective interest rates of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in their respective notes.

(c) foreign Currency Risk

 the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the 
functional currency of the operations which they relate. the currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily united States Dollars (uSD), 
australian Dollars (auD) and euro (eur). Foreign exchange exposures in transactional currencies other than functional currencies of the 
operating entities are kept to an acceptable level. 

 the Group does not consider it necessary to enter into foreign exchange contracts in managing its foreign exchange risk resulting from 
cash flows from transactions denominated in foreign currency, given the nature of the business for the time being.

 the net unhedged financial assets of the Group that are not denominated in its functional currency is as follows:

functional currency of the group

At 30 June 2008
ringgit Malaysia

At 30 June 2007
ringgit Malaysia

euro
RM

(�7,204)

-

total
RM

�9,488,544

�3,423,334

united States 
dollar

RM

�6,070,373

9,693,377

Australian
dollar

RM

3,435,375

3,729,957

net financial Assets held in non-functional Currency

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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34. fInAnCIAl InStRuMentS (continued)

(d) liquidity Risk

 the Group manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as to ensure that refinancing, 
repayment and funding needs are met. as part of its overall liquidity management, the Group maintains sufficient levels of cash or cash 
convertible investments to meet its working capital requirements. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking facilities 
at a reasonable level to its overall debt position.

(e) Credit Risk

 the Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.  Credit risks, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, are controlled 
by the application of credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Credit risks are minimised and monitored by limiting the 
Group’s associations to business partners with high creditworthiness. trade receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis via Group 
management reporting procedures. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit 
verification procedures. 

 the credit risk of the Group’s other financial asset, such as cash and cash equivalents arises from default of the counterparty, with a 
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of this financial asset. however, management does not expect any counterparty to 
fail to meet its obligations.

 the Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty nor does it have any major concentration 
of credit risk related to any financial assets.

(f) fair Values

 the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities such as cash and cash equivalent, receivables, payables and short term borrowings 
of the Group and of the Company at the balance sheet date approximated their fair values due to relatively short term nature of these 
financial instruments, except for the following:

financial Assets

at 30 June 2008:
amount due from subsidiary companies
Short term investment

at 30 June 2007:
amount due from subsidiary companies
Short term investment

* It is not practical to estimate the fair values of amount due from subsidiary companies due principally to a lack of fixed repayment 
terms entered into by the parties involved and without incurring excessive costs.

Carrying 
Amount

RM

��,045,722
3,460,933

6,982,750
6,952,8�0

fair
Value

RM

*
3,460,933

*
6,952,8�0

Company
Carrying 
Amount

RM

-
9,862,872

-
9,274,366

fair
Value

RM

-
9,862,872

-
9,274,366

group

note

��
�2

��
�2

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)
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34. fInAnCIAl InStRuMentS (continued)

(f) fair Values (continued)

 the nominal/notional amounts and net fair values of financial instruments not recognised by the Company as at the end of the financial 
year are:

Contingent liabilities

# this represents the amount drawdown as at the financial year end.

the following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of the following class of financial instruments:

i) Short term Investment

 the fair value of quoted short term investment is determined by reference to the stock exchange quoted market bid prices at the 
close of the business on the balance sheet date.

ii) Borrowings

 Fair value has been determined using discounted estimated cash flows.  the discount rates used are the current market incremental 
lending rates for similar types of lending and borrowing arrangements.

35. COMPARAtIVe fIguReS

as mentioned in note 33, certain comparative figures have been restated as a result of the change in accounting policies arising from the 
adoption of the new and revised FrSs.

nominal/ 
notional 
Amount

RM

4,850,000

net fair 
Value

RM

567,7�3 

30 June 2007
nominal/ 
notional 
Amount

RM

4,850,000

net fair 
Value

RM

 838,097#

30 June 2008

note

3�

noteS to the FInanCIal StateMentS (continued)

#
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the following information is provided in compliance with the listing requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2008:

Material Contracts Involving directors and Substantial Shareholders

Save as otherwise disclosed in Significant related party transactions in the Financial Statements, there are no material 
contracts including contracts relating to any loan entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving Directors 
and major shareholders’ interests.

Sanctions and Penalties

there were no sanctions or penalties imposed by any regulatory authorities on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors 
or management during the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Share Buy-Backs

the Company did not make any share buy-backs during the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

non-Audit fees

non-audit fees paid to external auditors during the financial year ended 30 June 2008 amounted to rM�4,600.

Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities exercised

no options, warrants or convertible securities were issued during the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Variation in Results for the financial Year

there was no deviation of �0% or more between the audited results for the financial year and the unaudited financial 
results previously announced.

American depository Receipt (“AdR”)/global depository Receipt (“gdR”)

the Company did not sponsor any aDr or GDr programme during the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Profit estimate, forecast or Projection

the Company has not provided a profit forecast for the financial year ended 30 June 2008.
 

Profit guarantee

there was no profit guarantee given by the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

aDDItIonal CoMplIanCe InForMatIon
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utilisation of Proceeds from Corporate Proposals

as an integral part of the listing of Imaspro Corporation Berhad (“ICB”) on the Second Board of Bursa Securities, a public 
Issue of �7,064,758 ICB Shares at an issue/offer price of rM0.75 per ICB Share raised a total of rM�2,798,569 in proceeds. 
the proceeds from the public Issue have been utilised in the following manner:

acquisition of a property
acquisition of plant and machineries
working capital requirements
estimated listing expenses 
total

note:
* the actual acquisition of a property was lower than the estimated. as such, the unutilised balance of rM�00,000 

allocated for the acquisition of a property was utilised for working capital of the Group.

** the actual listing expenses were lower than the estimated.  as such, the unutilised balance of proceeds of rM29�,000 
allocated for listing expenses was utilised for working capital of the Group.

Revaluation of Properties

the Group does not have a revaluation policy on landed properties.

aDDItIonal CoMplIanCe InForMatIon (continued)

Balance unutilised 
as at 30 June 2008

RM’000

*�00
-
-

** 29�
39�

Amount utilised 
as at 30 June 2008

RM’000

(5,400)
(3,500)
(2,099)
(�,409)

(�2,408)

total amount of 
proceeds

RM’000

5,500
3,500
2,099
�,700

�2,799
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the details of landed properties of ICB Group are as follows:

Company/
location

Imaspro Resources
Sdn. Bhd.

h.S.(D) �30�3,  lot 
no. p.t. ��539
Mukim of kapar, 
District of klang, 
State of Selangor.

33, Jalan 5, kawasan �6, 
taman Intan, 4�300 klang, 
Selangor.

h.S. (D) �30�2, lot no. 
p.t. ��538, Mukim of kapar, 
District of klang, 
State of Selangor.

35, Jalan 5, kawasan �6, 
taman Intan, 4�300 klang, 
Selangor.

h.S. (D) �30��, lot no. 
p.t. ��537, Mukim of kapar, 
District of klang, 
State of Selangor.

37, Jalan 5, kawasan �6, 
taman Intan, 4�300 klang, 
Selangor.

h.S. (M) no. �75, �76, 
�77, �78, �79, �80, �8� 
and �82, Mukim of rIM, 
District of Jasin, 
State of Melaka.

Same as above

land 
Area/Built-up 

Area
(Sq ft)

land area:
�,540  

Built-up area: 
4,386

land area:
�,540 

Built-up area: 
4,386

land area:
�,540 

Built-up area: 
4,386

land area:
43 acres 

Built-up area: 
�68,653

tenure 

Freehold

Freehold

Freehold

Freehold

Age of 
Building
(years)

24

24

24

6

net Book 
Value

RM’000

�58

�58

639

�,99�

date of 
Acquisition

� March �990

�0 april �990

2� May 2004

8 november 2004

description/
existing use

3-storey 
shophouse/ 
rented out

3-storey  
shophouse/ 

administrative 
head office 

3-storey  
shophouse/ 

administrative 
head office

Freehold land 
with agricultural 
research centre 

comprising a 
single storey 
office block 

and laboratory/ 
research and 
development 
centre of ICB 

Group

propertIeS oF the Group
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propertIeS oF the Group (continued)

the details of landed properties of ICB Group are as follows:

Company/
location

Ideal Command
Sdn. Bhd.

h.S.(M) 6289 no. p.t. 4258, 
Mukim of kapar, District of 
klang, State of Selangor.

lot 2, Solok Sultan hishamuddin 7, 
kawasan 20, Selat klang utara,  
42000 port klang, Selangor.

h.S.(M) 6288 no. p.t. 4257, 
Mukim of kapar, District of 
klang, State of Selangor.

lot 4, Solok Sultan hishamuddin 7, 
kawasan 20, Selat klang utara, 
42000 port klang, Selangor.

Imaspro Biotech 
Sdn. Bhd.

h.S.(D) 60�22 no. p.t. 6062�, 
Mukim and District of klang, 
State of Selangor.

no. 24, lorong Seri Gambut �, 
off Jalan kebun, 4��00 klang, 
Selangor.

h.S.(D) 60�23 no. p.t. 60622, 
Mukim and District of klang, 
State of Selangor.

no. 22, lorong Seri Gambut �, 
off Jalan kebun, 4��00 klang, 
Selangor.

land 
Area/Built-up 

Area
(Sq ft)

land area:
73,378

Built-up area: 
3�,62�

land area:
88,�46

Built-up area: 
44,000

land area:
��,0�6

Built-up area: 
3,290

land area:
7,800

Built-up area: 
3,290

tenure 

leasehold 
interest for 99 
years expiring 

on 9 June 2086 
leaving an 

unexpired term 
of 78 years

leasehold 
interest for 99 
years expiring 

on 9 June 2086 
leaving an 

unexpired term 
of 78 years

Freehold

Freehold

Age of 
Building
(years)

20

26

�0

�0

net Book 
Value

RM’000

3,344

5,505

845

593

date of 
Acquisition

�5 november 
�996

�7 January 2007

�7 november 
2006

�7 november 
2006

description/
existing use

Manufacturing plant 
for agrochemicals/ 

housing of 
manufacturing 
facilities for the 
production of 
agrochemicals

Manufacturing plant 
for agrochemicals/ 

housing of 
manufacturing 
facilities for the 
production of 
agrochemicals

Manufacturing, plant 
and research and 

development centre 
of pesticides and 

agrochemicals

Manufacturing, plant 
and research and 

development centre 
of pesticides and 

agrochemicals
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ShareholDerS’ InForMatIon

AnAlYSIS Of ShARehOldIngS AS At 17 OCtOBeR 2008

authorised Share Capital : rM�00,000,000
Issued and paid up Capital : rM40,000,000
Class of Shares  : ordinary shares of rM0.50 each
Voting right  : one vote for every ordinary share

dIStRIButIOn Of ShARehOldIngS AS At 17 OCtOBeR 2008

Size of holdings no. of holders % no. of Shares %
    
less than �00 � 0.�7 50 0.00
�00 – �,000 299 5�.29 88,900 0.��
�,00� – �0,000 �94 33.28 857,350 �.07
�0,00� – �00,000 55 9.43 �,980,600 2.48
�00,00� to less than 5% of issued shares 3� 5.32 �9,443,032 24.30
5% and above of issued shares 3 0.5� 57,630,068 72.04
    
grand total 583 100.00 80,000,000 100.00

    
SuBStAntIAl ShARehOldeRS AS At 17 OCtOBeR 2008

  direct Interest  deemed Interest
name no. of shares held % no. of shares held  %
    
Swiss revenue Sdn. Bhd. 33,947,064 42.43 -  -
Sunbina Dunia Sdn. Bhd. �9,��8,704 23.90 -  -
lembaga tabung haji 4,564,300 5.7� -  -
Mohd Shafek Bin Isa �50,000 0.�9 �9,��8,704  * 23.90
tong Chin hen �50,000 0.�9 33,947,064  # 42.43
     
# Deemed interest through Swiss revenue Sdn. Bhd.
* Deemed interest through Sunbina Dunia Sdn. Bhd.
 

dIReCtORS’ ShARehOldIngS AS At 17 OCtOBeR 2008

  direct Interest  deemed Interest
name no. of shares held % no. of shares held  %
    
Mohd Shafek Bin Isa �50,000 0.�9 �9,��8,704  * 23.90
tong Chin hen �50,000 0.�9 33,947,064  # 42.43
tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi 2,67�,498 3.34 -  -
Dr. leong wan leong 50,000 0.06 -  -
tai keat Chai 50,000 0.06 -  -
    

# Deemed interest through Swiss revenue Sdn. Bhd.
* Deemed interest through Sunbina Dunia Sdn. Bhd.
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ShareholDerS’ InForMatIon (continued)

lISt Of thIRtY lARgeSt RegISteRed ShARehOldeRS AS At 17 OCtOBeR 2008

no. name of Shareholders no. of shares held %
   
�. Swiss revenue Sdn Bhd 33,947,064 42.43
2. Sunbina Dunia Sdn Bhd �9,��8,704 23.90
3. lembaga tabung haji 4,564,300 5.7�
4. tong ah wah @ tong Chun hwi 2,67�,498 3.34
5. Chin wei Ching 2,373,692 2.97
6. hlG nominee (asing) Sdn Bhd  
 - Commerzbank (Sea) ltd for Spice world Investments Inc 2,�20,000 2.65
7. hlG nominee (asing) Sdn Bhd  
 - Commerzbank (Sea) ltd for pyco holdings ltd 2,�00,000 2.63
8. universal trustee (Malaysia) Berhad  
 - CIMB - principal Small Cap Fund 2 �,794,700 2.24
9. universal trustee (Malaysia) Berhad  
 - CIMB Islamic Small Cap Fund �,472,900 �.84
�0. agrimart Sdn Bhd 940,000 �.�8
��. hSBC nominees (asing) Sdn Bhd  
 - exempt an for uBS aG 850,000 �.06
�2. M & a nominee (asing) Sdn Bhd  
 - lewey Marketing aktiengesellschaft 806,000 �.0�
�3. ku kooi khang 630,838 0.79
�4. neo khoon Seng 350,700 0.44
�5. kamol lertdetdecha 266,500 0.33
�6. Stephen kuek hock eng 256,604 0.32
�7. M & a nominee (asing) Sdn Bhd  
 - Multivers aktiengesellschaft 234,300 0.29
�8. wong klin Chai @ wong kum heng 233,�00 0.29
�9. lim Boon liat 2�0,000 0.26
20. Sabah Development Bank Berhad  
 - as Beneficial owner 207,000 0.26
2�. Cimsec nominees (tempatan) Sdn Bhd  
 - pledged Securities account for khoo nee Meng �95,000 0.24
22. teh kiat hock �65,000 0.2�
23. ong kong Beng �57,400 0.20
24. Mohd Shafek Bin Isa �50,000 0.�9
25. tong Chin hen �50,000 0.�9
26. tan Chong Seng �45,000 0.�8
27. amsec nominees (tempatan) Sdn Bhd  
 - pledged Securities account for pang Sar �43,500 0.�8
28. lee tan Yan �42,000 0.�8
29. lee kim heage �35,000 0.�7
30. Yap kim Yok ��9,000 0.�5
   
 tOtAl 76,649,800 95.83



�0 IMASPRO CORPORAtIOn BeRhAd (657527-h)

notICe IS hereBY GIVen that the Fourth annual General Meeting of IMaSpro CorporatIon BerhaD will be held at kelab Golf Sultan abdul 
aziz Shah, no �, rumah kelab, Jalan kelab Golf �3/6, 40�00 Shah alam, Selangor Darul ehsan on thursday, �8 December 2008 at �0.30 a.m. for 
the following purposes:- 

A g e n d A

As Ordinary Business

�. to receive the audited Financial Statements and the reports of the Directors and auditors thereon for the year 
ended 30 June 2008.   

2. to approve the payment of a single tier first and final dividend of 3.5 sen per share, in respect of the financial 
year ended 30 June 2008. 

    
3. to approve the payment of Directors’ fees in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2008. 

4. to re-elect encik Mohd Shafek Bin Isa who is retiring pursuant to article 75 of the Company’s articles of 
association.            

5. to re-elect Mr. tai keat Chai who is retiring pursuant to article 75 of the Company’s articles of association.          

6. to re-appoint Messrs. roger Yue, tan & associates as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors 
to fix their fees.                                                 

As Special Business
to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications:-

7. Authority to Allot and Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132d of the Companies Act, 1965

 “that, subject always to the Companies act, �965, the articles of association of the Company and the approvals 
of the relevant governmental/regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant 
to Section �32D of the Companies act, �965, to issue shares in the Company from time to time and upon 
such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may deem fit provided that the aggregate 
number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed �0% of the issued share capital of the 
Company for the time being and that such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next 
annual General Meeting of the Company.”

notICe oF annual General MeetInG

ordinary resolution �

ordinary resolution 2

ordinary resolution 3

ordinary resolution 4

ordinary resolution 5

ordinary resolution 6
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nOtICe Of dIVIdend entItleMent And PAYMent

notICe IS alSo hereBY GIVen that, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Fourth annual General Meeting of the Company, a single 
tier first and final dividend of 3.5 sen per share in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2008  will be paid to the shareholders on 23 January 
2009. the entitlement date for the said dividend shall be 9 January 2009.

a Depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the Dividend only in respect of:

a. Shares transferred into the Depositors’ Securities account before 4.00 p.m. on 9 January 2009 in respect of ordinary transfers;  

b. Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the rules of the Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad.

BY orDer oF the BoarD

eng SOO funn (f)  (MACS 00044)
lAM lee SAn (f)   (MAICSA 7048104)
Secretaries

petaling Jaya

Date: 26 november 2008

nOteS:
�. a proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section �49(�)(b) of the Companies act, �965 shall not apply to the 

Company. 

2. to be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy, duly completed must be deposited at the Share registrar of the Company at pFa registration Services Sdn. 
Bhd., level �7, the Gardens north tower, Mid Valley City, lingkaran Syed putra, 59200 kuala lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the 
meeting provided that in the event the member(s) duly executes the form of proxy but does not name any proxy, such member(s) shall be deemed to have 
appointed the Chairman of the meeting as his/their proxy, provided always that the rest of the proxy form, other than the particulars of the proxy have been 
duly completed by the member(s).

3. a member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting.

4. where a member appoints more than one (�) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by 
each proxy.

 where the appointer is a corporation, the instrument appointing a proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney 
duly authorised.

5. where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) act �99�, it may appoint at least 
one (�) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

notICe oF annual General MeetInG (continued)
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explanatory notes on Special Business

Ordinary Resolution no.  6 on the Authority to Allot and Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132d of the Companies Act, 1965

ordinary resolution no. 6 is proposed pursuant to Section �32D of the Companies act, �965 and if passed, will give the Directors of the Company, 
from the date of the above annual General Meeting, authority to issue and allot shares from the unissued share capital of the Company for such 
purposes as the Directors may deem fit and in the interest of the Company. this authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general 
meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next annual General Meeting of the Company.

StAteMent ACCOMPAnYIng nOtICe Of fOuRth AnnuAl geneRAl MeetIng

(Pursuant to the Paragraph 8.28(2) of the listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)

1. directors who are standing for re-election at the fourth Annual general Meeting of the Company are as follows:-

 a. encik Mohd Shafek Bin Isa
 b. Mr. tai keat Chai

2. further details of directors who are standing for re-election 

 Further details of the above Directors who are standing for re-election are set out on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report.

notICe oF annual General MeetInG (continued)



NOTES:
�. a proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section �49(�)(b) of the Companies act, �965 shall not apply to the 

Company. 
2. to be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy, duly completed must be deposited at the Share registrar of the Company at pFa registration Services Sdn. 

Bhd., level �7, the Gardens north tower, Mid Valley City, lingkaran Syed putra, 59200 kuala lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the 
meeting provided that in the event the member(s) duly executes the form of proxy but does not name any proxy, such member(s) shall be deemed to have 
appointed the Chairman of the meeting as his/their proxy, provided always that the rest of the proxy form, other than the particulars of the proxy have been 
duly completed by the member(s).

3. a member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting.
4. where a member appoints more than one (�) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by 

each proxy.
 where the appointer is a corporation, the instrument appointing a proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney 

duly authorised.
5. where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) act �99�, it may appoint at least 

one (�) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

AGENDA 1

receipt of the audited Financial Statements and the reports of the Directors and auditors for the year ended 30 June 2008.

I/we ____________________________________________________________________________________________ of ______________________

___________________________________________________________________________ being a member/members of IMaSpro CorporatIon 

BerhaD, hereby appoint _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

of _________________________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him, ______

_________________________________________________________________________________ of __________________________________

________________________________________________________________ or failing him, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to 

vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Fourth annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at kelaB GolF Sultan aBDul azIz 

Shah, no �, rumah kelab, Jalan kelab Golf �3/6, 40�00 Shah alam, Selangor Darul ehsan on thursday, �8 December 2008 at �0.30 a.m. and at 

any adjournment thereof.

(please indicate with an “x” in the spaces provided whether you wish your votes to be cast for or against the resolutions. In the absence of specific directions, your 
proxy will vote or abstain as he thinks fit.)

	 	 _______________________________
Signed this ____________	day of ____________	2008 Signature of Member/Common Seal

 FOr AGAiNSTOrDiNAry rESOluTiONS

ordinary resolution � approval on the payment of a First and Final Dividend.

ordinary resolution 2 approval on the payment of Directors’ Fees.

ordinary resolution 3 re-election of encik Mohd Shafek Bin Isa as Director.

ordinary resolution 4 re-election of Mr. tai keat Chai as Director.

ordinary resolution 5 re-appointment of Messrs. roger Yue, tan & associates as auditors of  
    the Company.

ordinary resolution 6 authority to allot and Issue Shares pursuant to Section �32D of the  
    Companies act, �965.

My/our proxy is to vote as indicated below:

AGENDA 2-7

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

ForM oF proxY
no. of Shares held



aFFIx
StaMp

the Company

IMASPRO CORPORAtIOn BeRhAd (CoMpanY no. 657527-h)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

pFa reGIStratIon SerVICeS SDn. BhD.

leVel �7, the GarDenS north tower

MID ValleY CItY, lInGkaran SYeD putra

59200 kuala luMpur

FolD thIS Flap For SealInG

then FolD here

FIrSt FolD here
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